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Translation from Arabic

Report on Review of Interim Consolidated Financial Statements
To the Board of Directors of Egvpt Kuwait Holding Company

Introduction

We have performed a limited review for the accompanying consolidated statement of financial
position of Egypt Kuwait Holding Company — An Egyptian Joint Stock Company subject to the
provisions of Investment Incentives & Guarantees Law — as of September 30, 2016 and the
related consolidated statements of income, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows for the nine-month then ended, and a summary of significant accountiﬁg policies and
other explanatory notes. Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of
these interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with Egyptian Accounting
Standards. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on these interim consolidated financial
statements based on our review,

Scope of Limited Review

We conducted our review in accordance with Egyptian Standard on Review Engagements 2410,
"Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity."
A Limited review of interim financial statements consists of making inquiries, primarily of
persons responsible for financial and accounting matters in the Company, and applying
analytical and other limited review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an
audit conducted in accordance with Egyptian Standards on Auditing and consequently does not
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might
be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an andit opinion on these interim
consolidated financial statements. -

Basis for Qualified Conclusion

(1) The provisions balance, in the consolidated statement of financia] position, includes an amount

of approximately USD 27.28 million which does not have a matching obligation out of which,
an amount of approximately USD 4.71 million has been carried forward from previous years
and the remaining amount of approximately USD 22.57 miilion has been formed during the
current period. The aforementioned matter has led to a reduction in net profit for the period with
an amount of approximately USD 22.57, an increase in the provisions balance as at
September 30, 2016 by approximately USD 27.28 million and a decrease in equity attributable
to owners of the Company balance by approximately USD 27.28 million. We have issued a
qualified auditor’s report on the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
on December 31, 2015 for the same reason.
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Starting from 2012, the Company’s management accounts for some available-for-sale
investments through the early adoption of the International Financial Reporting Standard
No. (9) "Financial Instruments” despite the fact that accounting for such investments should be
made in accordance with the Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (26) "Financial istruments: -
Recognition and Measurement ", the said matter has resulted in an increase in the balance of
retained earnings with an amount of approximately USD 179.48 million, the decrease of the fair
value reserve balance with an amount of approximately USD 181.43 million and also an
increase in the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company for the period with an -
amount of USD 1.95 million. We have previously issued a qualified report on the audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended as at December 31, 2015, for the
same reason.

The management of the Company recognized revenues of approximately USD 15.12 million in
the consolidated income statement, despite the fact that such revenues are pertaining to previous
financial periods, a matter that led to an increase in the revenues related to the financial period
ended as at September 30, 2016 with an amount of approximately USD 15.12 million and an
increase in the income tax expense for the period with an amount of approximately USD 3.40
million, The aforementioned resulted in an increase in the net profit for the period with an
amount of approximately USD 11.72 million and decrease in the opening balance of both the
retained earnings and non-controlling interests with the amounts of approximately USD 9.84
million and USD 1.88 million respectively.

Qualified Conclusion

Based on our review on the consolidated financial statements of Egypt Kuwait Holding
Company, with the exception of the effect of the matters described in paragraphs from (1) to
(3) in the Basis for Qualified Conchision paragraph, nothing has come to our attention that
causes us to believe that the accompanying interim consolidated financial statements do no
present fairly in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Egypt Kuwait
Holding Company as at September 30, 2016 and of its financial performance and its cash flows
for the nine-month then ended in accordance with Egyptian Accounting Standards and the

Egyptians laws and regulations related to the preparation of these comsolidated {inancial
statements.

KPMG Hazem Hassan

Public Accountants & Consultants

Cairo, November 17, 2016
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Company
i ne
_, Censolidated Statement of Financial Position

s e 0
: Note 30/9/2016 31/12/2015
Na, Usn usp
ﬁ_ESE;s_
=C 4
Equity - accounted investees (7) 103 608 490 155057733
Avallable -for- sale Investments ) 113804 871 115930389
Held to maturity financial assets (9] 57 936 664 -
: Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation {10-1) - 11401
Property, plantand equipment (net) {11) 250970111 267 486929
Explaration & development assets (12} - 93 594 442
! Projects under construction {13) 8992055 10 646 (31
Goodwill (14) 70699576 75612 838
. Otherintangible assets (net) {15} 22112 296 27307 394
' Other debtors {16) 158390 227782
Total non-current assets 628282 453 745 874 959
Current agsets
Cash at banks & on hand (18) 342 909 670 396 B&7 046
Investment In treasury bills (193 29422275 6044 645
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (20} 25024185 112 495 674
Trade & nates receivable {21) 32160300 69 566 932
Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation (10-13} 14813 755 14132102
Debtors & other debit halances (22} 108291 035 138 509 948
Inventories (23) 57823007 67846 708
: Work In progress (24) 10818527 8395895
Assetsheld for sale (25) 38 368 005 -
Total current assets 659 630 759 813 858971
! Total assets 1287913212 1559733930
1 Equity
H Issued & fully paid up capital (26) 256110292 256110292
Legal reserve (27) 123559511 121957282
! Special reserve - share premium (28} 57 954 547 57954 547
’ General reserve 29) 8380462 8380462
Fair value reserve (30),(8) {178 699 485) (175271 701)
Armount set aside for share-based payments transactions (31) 9680433 -
Retained earnings 309 785 752 299910 262
Foreign currency translation differences of foreign operations (32) (62 294 637) (47179 262)
524 476 875 521870 882
Non-controlling interests (33 229339910 269784 026
Tatal equity 754 476 785 791 654 908
-cu tabi
Long - term loans & bank facilitles (34) 39055 762 123097 740
Cther lang-term liabilltles 35) 683 654 833980
Egyptlan General Petroleum Corporation (10-2) - 581332
Provisions (37) - 4070 000
Deferred tax liabilities (36) 28537 141 29721891
Total non-~current Habllities 68 286 557 158 304 952
i Cre ilite:
Provisions (37) 37254 994 13827 109
Bank averdraft (38) 4826976 42735150
Short term Joan installments & bank facilities (39 191 256 145 216757972
Suppliers & subcoptractors 40 15752 167 83576453
Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation {10-2) 70840 085 47 416032
Dlvidends payable 1037 400 1037946
Creditors & other credit balances (41) 144177 520 204423408
Liabilities held forsale {25) 4 6030 -
Total current liabilities 465 149 870 609774070
Tatal liabilities 533436 427 768079022
Total equity and liabilities 1287913212 1559733930

* The accompanying notes on pages fram {6) to {66) ara an integral part of these consolidated fnancial statements and to be read therewith.

Group Chief Financlal Officer

Medhat Hamed Bonna

*Revlsw Report " attached "
KPMG Hazern Hassan

Sahar Hassan Farahat

Senjor Executive Yice President

Margglag Director

Sherif Al Zayat

Chairman & Magaging Director

Maataz Ade] Al- AIR



Ezypt Kuwalt Hoiding Company
L 'piian Juint Stack Company
Consolidated Income Statement

For the finaneial period ended Segtemnber 30. 2016

Note
Continuigg operations Na.
Operating revenuss (42}
Operating costs (43
Gross profit
Income from investnent activity (44)
Other income {43)
Selling & distribution expenses (46
General & adminishative expenses
Share based paymenis expense (52}
Other expenses (47
Operating profit
Financing income {48)
Financing costs {49)
Net financing income (Cost}
Share af profit of assoctates
Net profit for the period before income eax
Income tax expense G2
Net profit for the perlod from continning operatlon
Discontinued operations
Gain {loss) from discontinued operation {net of incomne tax} (500
Nen-controlling intetest shares in the ain from discontinued operation (50
Net profit for the period
Net profit atiributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests (33}
MNet profit for the perlod.
Basic earnings per shave {US cent / Share) (31}
Diiuted earning per share (US cent / Share) {51)
Baisc earnings per share (US eent / Share) from continuing operation {51
Diluted earning per share {US cent / S$hare) from cantinuing operation {51y

* The accompanying notes an pages from {6} to {66) are an integral part of these ¢

The nipe-month ended 30/09/2015

i A rah,

The nine-mogth ended 39/09/2015

From 1772016 From 1/1/2016 From 11015 From 1/1/2015
_till 30/9/2016 I 30/3£2016 il 30i9/2M 3 U 30012018

usno uUsD Usk UsD

88 244 005 268 351 609 55298 000 188 247 106

{ 52614 762) { 181 484 414) {47 182 673) { 148 698917y

354629243 86 867 195 8115327 39 548 194

4051 511 15 513 440 748 661 1 829 033

9 843 908 43 419 606 { 372109) 4811438

{2183 945 {73579 935) (14018123 { 5435 481

(5104912) [ 16413 715) { 5 941 690} {17513 600)

{9630 433) {9680 433) - -

{ 10025229 (32306 737 { 57 93%) [ 182472}

21530139 79620 331 1050 199 35004 102

3454022 E2280 178 3533168 12247 774

(2737610 { B 108 4443 {3365 692) { 10458 780)

716 411 4171 734 163 474 1788904

110 539 2354 (56 86 159 3316757

23 357 100 86 146 121 1339 834 43 109 853

[ B 140 852) [ 17964 0411 4137971 {4305 845

15216248 68 182 080 £ 497 805 38 304 008

58 428 [ 10630332) { 201026) 236047

- - { 37 538} 1181 073

15274 676 57 551 748 5268241 39 731138

12062 783 47 069 025 5538 894 33060 742

3211891 10 482 723 { 269 653) 6 670 386

15274 676 57 551 748 5269 241 30731128
.94 4.2% {42 2.95
0.8% 4.09 0.42 2.95
0.93 538 0,44 31.93
0.89 513 .44 2.93

lidated financial st ts and to be read therewlth,

—



Egypt Kuwait Holding Company

fAn Eevpiian Joint Stock Companv}

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the financial period sided September 30, 2016

The nine-month ended 34/93/2015

Jrakt;

Ihe nine-month ended 301942015

From 1/7/2014 From 112016 From 1/7/2{15 From 1/1/201%

Note fill 30972046 fill 30/9/2016 Hll 30912015 i) 30/3/2015

No, UsD UsD usD Ush
Net profit for the perfod 15274 676 57 551 748 5269 241 39731 128
Other comprehensive income items
Net change in fair value of available -for- sale investments {30} 33198 (3686 331) (3 367 998) {22853 652)
Foreign cumency ranslation difference of foreimm operations (32 { 661 525) {16 647 670) 1414115 { 4897 436)
Total ather comprehensive income items for the period before incpme tax ( 628 327) {20333 951) { 453 833) {27791 088}
Incame tax related to other comprehensive incoms jtems - - - -
Total other comprehensive income for the pertod after ineome tax [ 628 327) (20333 951 { 453 883) {27 791 038)
Total comprehensive income for the period 14 646 349 37217 797 4815358 11940040
Total comprehensive income far the period attributable ta:
Owners of the Cotmpany 11 654 533 28 525 866 5886 184 5581 826
Mon-conmolling interzsts 2991 816 8691 931 {1070 826) 6358214
Total comprehensive income for the period 14 644 349 37217 797 4 815358 11 840 {40

* The zccompanying notes on pages from (6) to (66) are an integyal part of these consolidated financial statements and to be read therewith,
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Company
An Egvotian Joint Stock Cempany

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flaws
For the financial period ended September 30, 204

Note

Cash flows from operating actjvities

et profit (Toss} for the perind before income tax

Adjustmens for:

Dlepreciation & awortization of property, plant and equipment and other non-tangible assets (111(15)
Exploration & developuent assets depletion '

Cain on sale of available -for- sale inveshinents

Coutpany's share of profits of associates ¥
Unrealized min on held for trading investinents 441420
Accraed interest & financing expenses

Interest income

Capital gin

Provisions o longer required 37}
Provisians other than depreciation (37}
Reversal of impairnent loss on debtors and other debit halances

Impairment loss on debtars and other debit balances

Share based payinents expense {31}
Gain (Loss} of disposal of discontinued operations (30)
Operatleg profit before changes in assets & liabilities availghle from operating activities

Change in held for trading investments

Change in trade & aotes receivable

Change in debtors & other debit batances

Changs in invantoniss

Change in work in progress

Change In suppliers & subcontractors

Change in creditors & other credit balances

Change in Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation
Change in blacked deposits

Provigions used

Interest & financing sxpenses paid

et chanpe in agsers of upconsolidared subscription due to loss of control
Net cash available from (used in) operating activities

Cash flows {rom investing actlvities

PFroceeds from sale of non eurrent assets held for sale

Interest recieved -
Payments for acquisition of property, plant and equipment & projects under construction
Payments for acquisition of exploration & development assets

Procesds fiom sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation

Praeeeds from sale of available -for- sale investments

Payments for scquisition of availsbie -for- sale investments

Payments for acquisition of investments i associates

Payinents for held to maturity financial assets

Dividends received fom associates

Payments for investment on treasury bifls (more then three months) {19}
Proceeds Bom treasury bills (more then three months)

Froceeds from disposal of discontinued operations

Net eash used in investing activities

Cash fiows fram financing activities

Repayment of fong-tenn loans & bank facilities
Proceeds from long-term loans & bank facilities
Proceads from short-terin loans & bank feilitias
Repayment of short-term loans & bank facilities
Proceeds from bank overdraft

Rep of bank overdraft

Payments for acquisition of non-coatrolling interests
Mon-controlling interests

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Foreign currency translation differences

Met change in cash and cash equivalents during the period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period

Cash and eash equivalents at end of the period (18}

The nioe- month
ended 30/%/2016

2150, 1 An

The nine- month

ended 30/0/2013

UsD USD
86 146 121 43 109 853
21432 510 21 968 537
. 14 841 792
- {4713 291y
{2 354 656 {2957 132)
{1 454 144) {338 128)
8 106 444 17 527035
110 381 773) (12 385 536
{ 67 910) {43917
19 830 662) {4 178 446)
32 506 777 3422
(33 086 951) {96 443)
. 142 050
9 680 433 -
{10 630 332) 1427 120
89 788 397 70 593 906
88 955 633 17 580 366
{4 220 67 {1 432341y
{3 837 444) {45 990 050)
(3 943 723) 1637723
{2 422 632 { 650 788)
4 340 08¢ 19 769 477
{32 556 273 18 844 668
23 842 701 7757 613
{132 023 713) 142 527 306
{274 248) {514 68T)
(8 130 329) (16 793 135}
(39 363 876) {4 895 417
(20 346 454) 23 376 529
- 1250 000
8258 196 12 060 479
(11027 860 (8 861 880
- (47 566 425)
1 049 767 14118
{ 670252 6 543 707
4 525 444 10 753 072
{6 080 354) {16 703 568
- (18 379 135)
{57 936 G4 .
1200 000 .
(43 754 657} {5 936 62}
20 077 563 -
- 4§ 577 650
(84 258 £17) (62 243 944)
. (9% 612 423)
4 365 638 60 879 556
113 783 038 49 010 533
{154 572 083) (6 043 313)
50 447 -
(38 153 612} (23 525 725
{3 043 268) (15 315 675)
36 893 584 (3792 937)
{26 824 402} (37 672 544}
(77 492 388) (76 072 530)
{4 368 516) 8 424 287
{186 466 545) (106 515 638)
346 901 181 372 320 771
160 434 636 265 305 113

¥ The accompanying notes on pages from {6) ta (66) are an integral part of these consoildated financial statements and to be read therewith.



Translation from Arabic

Egypt Kuwait Holding Company
{An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the financial period ended September 30, 2016

Background and activities

Egypt Kuwait Holding Company “The Company” was incorporated by virtue of the Chairman of
General Investment Authority's resolution No. 197 of 1997, according to the provisions of
Investment Law No. 230 of 1989 and according to Law No. § of 1997, concerning Investment
Incentives & Guarantees and Law No. 95 of 1997 conceming Capital Market.

The Company was registered in Giza Governorate Commercial Registry under No. 114648 on
20/7/1997. The duration of the Company according to the Company's Statute, is 25 years starting
from the date of registration in the Commercial Registry,

The Company’s financial year starts on J anuary 1* and ends on December 31% each year.

The Company’s purpose is represented in investment in all activities stated in Article 1 of Law
No. 230 of 1989, provided that its object does not include accepting deposits or performing
banking transactions and comprise the following activities:-

A - Securities underwriting and promotion, :
B- Participation in Companies, which issue securities or increasing their capital.
C- Venture capital.

In addition, the Company is entitled to establish other projects or modify its purposes in
conformity with the Investment Law. The Company is also entitled to establish or patticipaie in
projects not governed by the Investment Law subject to the approval of the General Investrent
Authority & General Capital Market Authority.

On March 6, 2002 the General Investment Authority gave permission to the Company to use the
cxcess finds in investing outside the Arab Republic of Egypt by participating in establishing
companies & coniributing to projects & portfolios of marketable securities managed abroad.

The registered office of the Company is located at 14 Hassan Mohamed El Razaz St.-Dokki -
Egypt. Mr. Moataz Adel AL-Alfi is the Chairnan of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements for the financial period ended September 30, 2016
comptise the financial statements of B gypt Kuwait Holding Company (the Parent Company) & its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group’s interest in associates and
Jjointly controlled entities. The Group is involved in several activities which are represented in
investment activities, selling & supplying of natural gas activity, drilling, petroleum &
petrochemicals services activity, fertilizers activity, exploration and exploitation of oil, natural
gas activity, chill technology by natural gas activity, communications and selling & distributing
of chemicals & plastic activity, manufacturing of painting activity and life, responsibilities and
properiies insurance activity (note No. 3-1-1),



Egypt Kuwait Helding Co.

AnE

tian Joint Stock Company

Nates to the consolidated financial statements {Cent.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 Translation from Arabic
2- Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial statements
a)  Statement of comphkance

- These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Egyptian
Accounting Standards and relevant Egyptian laws and regulations. '

- The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors of
the Company on November 14, 2016.

b)  Basis of measurement
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on histerical cost basis except for the
following:- .

* Derivatives financial instruments measured at fair value.

¢ Financial assets at fair valye through profit or loss.

* Available-for-sale investments measured at fair value,

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in note No (2-¢).

¢)  Funetional and presentation currency
The consolidated financial statements are presented in USD, which is the Parent Company’s
functional currency.

d)  Use of estimates and j udements

- The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Egyptian Accounting
Standards requires management to make Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgments about the carrying values of agsets and liabilities that are readily apparent
from other sources. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

- The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

- Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised ;£
the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

€)  Measurement of fair values

The fair value of financial instruments is measured based on the market value of the financial
instrument or & similar financial instrument as at the financial statements date without deducting
any estimated future selling costs. The value of financial .assets is determined by the current
purchase prices of these assets whereas, the value of financial liabilities is determined by the
current prices which can be used to settle these liabilities.

In case of inactive market exists to determine the fair value of the financial instruments, the fair
value is estimated using the different valuation techniques while considering the prices of the
transactions recently made and using the current fair value of the other similar financial
instrument as a guide significantly ~ discounted cash flows method - or any other valuation
method that results in reliable values. ,

On using the discounted cash flows method as & valuation technique, the future cash flows are
estimated based on best estimate of management and the used discount rate is determined in light
of the prevailing price in market as at the financial statements date of similar financial
instruments with respect to their nature and conditions.

-7



Egypt Kuwait Holding Co,

An E

tian Joint Stock Compan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 Transtation from Arabic
3-

3-1
3-1-1

3-1-2

3-1-3

3-14

3-1-5

3-2
3-2-1

Significant accounting policies

The accounting polices set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are
included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which conirol commences until
the date on which control ceases.

Non-controlling interest

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the date
of acquisition.

Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted
for as equity transactions.

Loss of control

When the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and Habilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any resulting gain or loss is
recognized in profit or loss, Any interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair
value when control is lost.

Interests in equity-accounted investees

The Group’s interests in equity-accounted investees comprise interests in associates and a joint
venture.,

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over the financial and operating policies.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Group has joint control, whereby the Group has
rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and obligations for its
liabilities.

Interests in associates and the joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. They are
initially recognized at cost, which includes transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share
of the profit or loss and OCI of equity accounted investees.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from

intra-group transactions, are eliminated. Unrealized gains arising from transactions with equity
accounted investees are eliminated against the investment o the extent of the Group’s interest in
the investee. An unrealized Josses are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains, but only to
the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated info the respective functional currencies of
Group companies at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

_8-



Egypt Kuwait Holding Ca.

(An Epyptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial stztements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 ) Transiation firom Arabic

3-2-2

b}

¢}

Monetary assets and Habilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional curmrency at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based
on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognized in profit or loss.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the following items are
recognized in OCI:

available-for-sale equity investments (except on impairment, in which case foreign currency
differences that have been recognized in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss);

A financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective,

Qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

Foreign operations

The assets and Habilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into euro at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The
income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into euro at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency differences are recognized in OCI and accumulated in the translation reserve,
except to the extent that the translation difference is allocated to NCI.

When a foreign operation is disposed of in its entirety or partially such that control, significant
influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that
foreign operation is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

If the Group disposes of part of its interest in a subsidiary but retains control, then the relevant
proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to NCI

When the Group disposes of only part of an associate or joint venture while retaining significant
influence or joint control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Property, plant and eq uvipment & depreciation

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
(3-3-C) and any accumulated impairment losses (3-12-b).

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group,

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual vahues using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is
generally recognized in profit or loss. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease
termn and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that the Group will obtain ownership by
the end of the lease term. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
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Asset Years
Usufruct of lands 25
Buildings of the Parent Company’s premises 50
Buildings & constructions 20— 50 or according to lease term
Machinery & equipment 3-20
Stations & electric transformers 10
Means of transportation 4-10
Furniture & office equipment 2-10
Computer hardware & software and Decorations 3 - 6.67
Air-conditions 4 6.67
Tools & supplies 3
Leasehold improvements Over the lower of lease term or estimated
useful life

34

3-5

3-5-1

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at ach reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

Projects under construction

Projects under construction are recognized initially at cost. Cost includes all expenditures directly
Attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for it intended use. Projects under
construction are transferred to fixed assets caption when they are completed and are ready for
their intended use.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment of goodwill is not reversed subsequently. In case of gain on
bargain purchase, it is recognized immediately in the statement of income.

Exploration and development expenses

Expenditure on research activities is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Development expenditure is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
product or process is technically and commercially feasible, future economic benefits are
probable and the Group intends to and has sufficient resources to complete development and to
use or sell the asset. Otherwise, it is recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to initial
recognition, development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets, including customer relationships, patents and trademarks that are
acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measired at cost less accumulated
amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.

Deferred charges

Actual costs incurred by the Company while establishing Al Nubaria Electricity station in excess
of contractual value and were not refunded from the Egyptian Holding Company for Natural Gas
(EGAS) including the amount paid as a non- refundable grant. Cost of other assets is amortized
using the straight line method over Fifteen years starting from pumping the Gas to the station.

-10-



Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

AnE

tian Jaint Stoek Company

Notes to the consolidated financial ststements (Cont.)

Eor the financial period ended September 30, 2016 . Transiation from Argbic

3-5-2

3-5-3

3-6
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Subsequent expenditures

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditures
are expensed as incurred,

Amortization

Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual

values using the straight-live method over their cstimated useful lives, and is generally
recognized in profit or loss. Goodwill is not amortized.

Finaneial instruments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets info the following categories: financial assets
at f{air value through profit or loss, held- to-maturity financial assets, loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets.

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the following categories: financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and other financial liabilities category.

N on—derivgtive financial assets and liabilities- recognition and disposal

The Group initially recognizes loans and receivables and debt securities issued on the date when
they are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized on
the trade date when the entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred,
or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does
not retain contrel over the fransferred asset, Any interest in such derecognized financial assets
that is created or retained by the Group is reco grized as a separate asset or liability.

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
offset the amounts and intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. '

Non-derivative financial assets - measurement
. e e

Financial assets measured at fajr value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as at fair valye through profit or loss if it is classified as held for-
trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction costs are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest or dividend income, are
recognized in profit or loss.

Held — to — maturity financial assets

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.
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3-6-3

338

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

Available for sale financial assets

These assets are initially measured at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, they are measured at fair value and changes
theremn, other than impaimment losses and foreign cumrency differences on debt
instruments, are recognized in OCI and accumulated in the fair value reserve. When these

assets are derecognized, the gain or loss accumulated in equity is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Non-derivative financial liabilities - measurement

A financial liability is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as
held-for-trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Directly attributable transaction
costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. Financial lizbilities at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognized
in profit or loss.

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value less any direcily
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these liabilities are measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable valye.

The Cost of inventories is based on the moving average principle and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing it to its existing location and condition. Cost of
finished goods and work in process inventories includes an appropriate share of production
overheads,

Petrochemicals imventories is valued based on the following basis;

Inventories of purchased supplies, utilities and spare parts, fuel and oil are stated at cost. The cost
is calculated based on moving average principle.

Unfinished goods

The cost of work in process is determined based on indirect manufacturing costs till the latest

production process reached and includes an appropriate share of overheads till the current
process.

Finished goods

Inventory of finished products is determined based on the cost or net realizable value which is
lower,

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities, are classified as held- for

sale if it is highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through

continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and

fair value less costs to sell. Any impairment loss on a disposal group is allocated first to goodwill,
-12-
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3-10

3-11

3-12

and then fo the remaining assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocated
to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets, employee benefit assets, investment property
or biological assets, which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group’s other
aceounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held-for-sale or held-for
distribution and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognized in profit or loss.

Once classified as held-for-sale, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are no

longer amortized or depreciated, and any equity-accounted investee is no longer equity
accounted.

Construction contracts in progress

Construction contracts in progress represents the gross amount expected to be collected from
customers for contract work performed to date. It is measured at costs incurred plus profits
recognised to date less progress billings and recognised losses.

In the statement of financial position, construction contracts in progress for which costs incurred
plus recognised profits exceed progress billings and recognised losses are presented as trade and
other receivables. Contracts for which progress billings and recognised losses exceed costs
ncurred plus recognised profits are presented as deferred income/revenue. Advances received
from customers are presented as deferred.

Debtors and other debit balances

Debtors are recorded at their nominal value net of any irrecoverable amounts. An estimate of
doubtful debts is made when collections of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad debts are

written off when identified. Other debit balances are stated at cost less impairment losses
(3-12).

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows, "cash & cash equivalents”
comprise cash at banks & on hand, time deposits with original maturities of three month or less
and net of bank overdraft balances, which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of
the Group cash management.

Impairment of assets

Non-derivative financial asseis

Financial assets not classified as at fair value through profit or loss, including an interest
in an equity accounted investee, are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

Default or delinquency by a debtor;

restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

Indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

Adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers ;

The disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties: or
Observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the expected cash flows
from a group of financial assets. ‘

For an investment in an equity security, objective evidence of impairment includes a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost, The Group considers a
decline of 20% to be significant and a period of nine months to be prolonged.
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Financial assets measured at amortized cost

The Group considers evidence of impairment for these assets at both an individual asset and a
collective level. All individually significant assets are individually assessed for impairment.
Those found not to be impaired are then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet individually identified. Assets that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment. Collective assessment is carried out by grouping together
assets with similar risk characteristics.

In assessing collective impairment, the Group uses historical information on the timing of
recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, and makes an adjustment if current economic and

credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser than suggested by
historical trends.

An impairment loss is calculated as the difference between an asset’s camrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective
interest rate,

Losses are recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Group
considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are
written off.

If the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, then the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Available for sale financial assets

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets are recognized by reclassifying the losses
accumulated in the fair value reserve to profit or loss. The amount reclassified is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss.

If the fair value of an impaired available-for-sale debt security subsequently increases and the
increase can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognized, then the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognized in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified as available-for-
sale are not reversed.

Equity-accounted investees

An impairment loss in respect of an equity-accounted investee is measured by comparing the
recoverable amount of the investment with its catrying amount. An impairment loss is reco gnized
in profit or loss, and is reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount.

Non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets other
than inventories and deferred tax assets to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
Goodwill is tested annually for impairment.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of
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other assets or CGUs. Goodwill arising from a business combination is allocated to CGUs or
groups of CGUs that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present

value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is .recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount,

Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the
other assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impafrment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount

that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

Finance leasing

The accrued rental value due from finance lease contracts in addition to what the Group bears for
maintenance and repairing expenses of leased assets; are charged to the consolidated income
statement each financial year. If the Group at the end of the contract decided to exercise the
purchase option of the leased asset, this asset will be recorded as a fixed asset by the value of
using the purchase option which is agreed upon in the contract. This asset will be depreciated
based on its useful life according to the Group’s fixed asset depreciation policy for similar assets.

Provisions

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

Provision for warranty

A provision for warranties is recognized when the underlying products or services are sold, based

on historical wairanty data and a weighting of possible outcomes against their associated
probabilities.

Onerous contracts
A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected
cost of terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract, Before

a provision is established, the Group recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with
that contract.

Loans and berrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with
any difference between cost and redemption value being recognized in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings on an effective interest basis.

Trade payables and other credit balances

Trade payables and other credit balances are stated at cost.
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a)

b)

3-18

3-19

Ordinary shares

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognized as a
deduction from equity. Income tax relating to transaction costs of an equity transaction are
accounted for in accordance with EAS 24 "Income Tax".

Repurchase and reissue of ordinary share

When shares recognized as equity are repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which
includes directly attributable costs is recognized as a deduction from equity. Repurchased shares
are classified as treasury shares and are presented in the treasury share reserve. When treasury
shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognized as an increase in
equity and the resulting swrplus or deficit on the fransaction is presented within share premium.

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as a liability in the period in which they are declared.

Equity settled share — based payments

The grant-date fair value of equity-settled share-based payment arrangements granted to
employees is generally recognized as an €xpense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the vesting period of the awards. The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
number of awards for which the related service and non-market performance conditions are
expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately recognized is based on the number of awards
that meet the related service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.

For share-based payment awards with non ~vesting conditions, the grant-date fair value of the
share-based payment is measured to reflect such conditions and there is no frue-up for
differences between expected and actual outcomes.

Revenue

Gas activity revenue

Refundable works

Refundable revenues generated from executed works for the Egyptian Holding Company for
Natural Gas (EGAS) in respect of the two projects at West of Alexandria and Borg Al Arab are
recorded in the consolidated income statement using the percentage of completion methed, based
on the percentage of the actual cost according to the accrual basis up to the date of the
consolidated balance sheet date divided by the total estimated cost unti} completion of the project
multiplied by the total contractual value of the two projects.

Refundable revenue generated from construction contracts are recorded using the percentage of
completion method, contract execution costs that could not be estimated in a reliable way its
revenues is recognized in the refundable cost limit.

Minimum take commissions

Minimum commission revenue guaranteed by the agreement with the Egyptian General
Petroleum Corporation for selling and piping natural gas is recognized after the first customer in
the concession area. This commission is subject to audit and financial adjustments periodically at
the end of each year.

Minimum commission revenue in respect of pushing gas to Al Nubaria electrical station is
represented in the company’s minimum revenue included in the agreement concluded with the

Egyptian Holding Company for Natural Gas (EGAS) and due at the end of each year of the
agreement term.
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Fayum Gas Company receives minimum guaranteed commission from EGPC for operating,
managing, and maintaining the gas transmission and distribution grid, annexes and for collecting
payments from customers. The commission is calculated based on investment spent by Fayum
Gas, with a minimum guaranteed internal rate of return (IRR} of 18%. Minimum commission is
recognized in the income statement when it accrues at the higher of the actual commission or
minimum commission guaranteed by EGPC. For actual gas sales, Fayum Gas remits the funds it
collects to EGPC net of its actual commission, which is calculated as a percentage of gas
consumption,

Natural gas sales commission

Revenues from natural gas sales commission are recognized on Al Nubaria electrical station
according to the sold quantities and the agreed upon prices.

Commercial sector revenue

Revenues from commercial sector are recognized when the services are rendered to the
customers.

Bill of quantities revenue

Bill of quantities revenues are recognized wher the services are rendered to the client.

Network operation & gas distribution commission

Revenues from operation of network and gas distribution are recognized in the light of amounts
distributed to customers and the agreed upon prices.

Revenues & costs of construction contracts
SLVEIES & COSLs o1 construction contracts
Revenue from construction contracts is recognized in the income statement according to the

percentage of completion through calculating what is actually accomplished from the clanses of
the contract.

The contract costs are measured through calculating what is spent from the clauses of contract for
the stage in which the revenue is recognized. The contract costs include all direct costs from
materials, labor, subcontractors and overheads related to the execution of contract clauses like
indirect labor and maintenance expenses as it also includes the general and adminisirative
expenses spent directly on the contracting works.

The provision for estimated losses according fo the construction contracts in progress is formed
- if any- in the financial year during which those losses are assessed.

Co mmunications, geographic maps and agencies activities revenue

Revenue from sale of geographic maps is recognized in the consolidated income statement when
the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer.

Reverue from services of agencies is recognized in the consolidated income statement when the
service is rendered,

Chemicals and plastic activity revenue

Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of
goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods,
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. For export sales, transfer of risks and
rewards of the goods sold occurs according to the shipping terms.
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4]

h)

Revenues are recognized when goods are delivered to customers, Service revenue is recognized
when the service is rendered to customers. No revenue is reco gnized if there is uncertainty for the
cousideration or its associated costs.

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in contract
work, claims and incentive payments to the extent that is probable that they will result in reveniie
and can be measured reliably.

As soon as the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognized in profit or loss in proportion: to the stage of completion of the contract which is
determined by the Company’s technicians. Contract expenses are recognized as incurred unless
they create an asset related to future contract activity. The stage of completion is assessed by
reference to surveys of work performed. When the outcome of a construction contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are likely to be recoverable. A provision for expected loss on a contract- if any- is formed in the
financial year during which those losses are assessed.

Sale of electricity

Revenue is recognized upon issuance of customers’ electricity consumption invoices.

Fertilizers activity revenue

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the risks and rewards of ownership have been
trangferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognized if there is uncertainty for the consideration or

its associated costs or any expected sales retumn or continuation of management involvement with
the goods.

Gain on sale of investments

Gain on sale of investments in securities is recorded as soon as their ownership is transferred to

the buyer and is computed based on the difference between the selling price and the book value
on the date of sale.

Finance income and finance costs

The Group’s finance income and finance costs include:

Interest income;

Interest expense; :

The foreign currency gain or loss on financial assets and financial liabilities;

The gain on the measurement to fair value of any pre-existing interest'in an acquiree in a
business combination;

Interest income or expense is recognized us ing the effective interest method. Dividend income is
recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to receive payment is
established.

Commission income
Commission income is recognized as it acerues in the consolidated income statement.
Dividends

Dividends income is recognized in the consolidated income statement on the date the Group’s
right to receive payments is established.
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a)  Lease payments

b)

c)

Payments under leases are recognized in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the terms of the lease,

Employees’ pension

The Group contributes to the government socia] insurance system for the benefit of its personnel
in accordance with the social insurance law. Under this law, the employees and the employers
contribute into the system on a fixed percentage-of-salaries basis. The Group’s liability is
confined to the amount of its contribution. Contributions are charged to the consolidated income
statement using the accrual basis of accounting.

Some Companies within the Group contribute to the Group Insurance plan for the benefit of their
employees at an insurance Company. According to this plan, employees are granted end of
service benefit on retirement, death and full disability during the service years. Bnd of service
benefits are repayable by the insurance company. The Companies contribution is confined to the
annual insurance premiums. The Group contributions are charged to the consclidated income
statement as they are incurred according to accrual basis of accounting.

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Tt is recognized in profit or loss except to

the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognized directly in equity or in
OCL

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the
year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years, The amount
of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, i’ any. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes,
Deferred tax is not recognized for;

» taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill
* temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or Liabilities in a transaction that:
1) is not a business combination '
2) Neither affects accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
* temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to

the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on business plans for
individual subsidiaries in the Group. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized;
such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they
can be used.
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d)

321

322

323

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carTying amount
ofits assets and liabilities. For this purpose, the carrying amount of investment property measured
at fair value is presumed to be recovered through sale, and the Group has not rebutted this
presumption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

General Authority for Investments fees

Companies established under the provisions of the Investment law and according to the Free
Zones System are not subject to income tax. However, according to the Investment law, 1% of
the total revenues of these companies are due to General Authority for Investments. The said fees

are calculated and charged to the consolidated income statement according to the accrual basis of
accounting,

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group's business, the operations and cash flows
of which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group.

When an operation is classified as a discontinued oOperation, the comparative consolidated income
statement and statement of comprehensive income is re~presented as if the operation had been
discontinued from the start of the comparative period.

Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the
period.

Segment reporting

A business segment is a group of interrelated assets and operations engaged in providing products
or services that are subject to risks and benefits that are different from those of other business
segments or engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic environment
that is attributed by risks and benefits different from those of segments operating in other
economic environments,

Financia] risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

* Credit risk
¢ Liquidity risk

o Market risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Parent Company's
management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these
consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Group’s risk management framework. The Board also is responsible for
identifying and analyzing the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls,
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.

The Group management aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in
which all employees understand their roles and obligations,

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company is assisted in its oversight role by the Audit
Comumittee and Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and suddenly reviews of

risk management controls and procedures, the result of which are reported to the Board of
Directors.
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4-1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s trade
and other receivables.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The demographics of the Group’s customer base including the default risk of the
industry has less an influence on credit risk.

Approximately 38.35 % of the Group’s sales are attributable to sales transactions with a
governmental customer and other sales are attributable to a large group of local customers.
However, geographically there is no concentration of credit risk,

The Group Management has established credit policies under which each new customer is
analyzed individually for credit worthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery
terms and conditions are offered. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark credit

worthiness may transact with the Group only on a prepayment basis. No previous impairment loss
was resulted from transactions with trade receivables.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses
in respect of trade and other receivables based on historical data of transactions with them.

Investments

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by only investing in active and liquid securities.
Management does not expect any counterparty to {ail to meet its obligations.

Guarantees

The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only to wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
fall due.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its Habilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.
Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand to meet expected operational
expenses for an appropriate period mcluding the servicing of financial obligations, this excludes

the potential impact of extreme circumstances that cannct reasonably be predicted, such as natural
disasters.

In addition, the Group maintains the following lines of credit:
L.E 330.294 million equivalents to USD 37.237 million as unsecured bank facilities. Interest
would bie payable at a rate ranging between 10%and 11.5 %.

L.E 401.747 million equivalent to USD 4529 million as bank facilities secured by commercial
papers and collateral checks and promissory notes. Interest would be payable at a rate ranging
between 1.5% and 2.5% above CORRIDOR rate for Egyptian Pound.

USD 70.77 million as bank facilities secured by promissery notes, mortgage portfolios and

insurance policies. Interest would be payable at a rate ranging between 1% and 2.5% above
LIBOR.
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4-3 Market risk

4-4

4-6

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates
and equity prices will affect the Group’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
struments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return.

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk on borrowings that are denominated in a currency other
than the respective functional currencies of Group entities, primarily the Egyptian Pound.

Interest on borrowings is denominated in currencies that match the cash flows generated by the
underlying operations of the Group. This provides an economic hedge and no derivatives are
entered into,

The Company’s investments in other subsidiaries are not hedged as those currency positions are
considered to be long-term in nature.

Interest rate risk

The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that about 3.33 % of its exposure to changes in interest
rates on borrowings is on fixed rate basis. The Company does not enter into interest rate swap.

Other market prices risk

Equity price risk arises from available for sale equity securities and management of the Group
monitors the equity securities in its investment portfolio based on market indicates.

Material investments within the portfolio are managed on an individual basis and all buy and sell
decisions are approved by the Board of Directors of the Parent Company.

The primary goal of the Group’s mvestment strategy is to maximize investment returns.
Management is assisted by external advisors in this regard.

In accordance with this strategy certain investments are designated as held for trading
investments because their performance is actively monitored and they are managed on a fair value
basis,

Capital management

The Group policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investors, creditors and
market confidence and to sustain future development of the business.

The Board of Directors of the Parent Company monitors the return on capital, which the
Company defines as net profit for the period divided by total shareholders’ equity, the Board of
Directors also monitors the tevel of dividends to shareholders.

The Board of the Parent Company seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that

might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position.

There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management during the period; the
Parent Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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L 5- New Issues and Amendments issued to the Egyptian Accounting Standards {EAS’s) and

have heen adopted effective from January 1%, 2016 ;

o During the year 2015, a modified version of the Egyptian Accounting Standards (EAS)
' was issued including some of the new accounting standards and the amendments to some
existing standards provided that they shall come into force for the financial years that
start after January 1, 2016, while taking into consideration that the early implementation

ofthese standards is not permissible.

In the following table, we shall present the most promiment amendments on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company as at September 30, 2016:

New or Amended
Standards

Egvptian Standard No. (1}

Presentation of Financial
Statements

J—}

Summary of the Most Significant Amendments Paossible Impact on the

Financizal Statements

Financial Position Statement

- ® The Standard does not require to present the ~ » The presented financial

working capital presentation. statements, disclosures and
The reference financial statements that was their accompanying notes
included in 2006 Standards was excluded; including the comparative
which presented the working capital figures have been re-
presentation. presented.

*» A statement shall be added to the staterment of Adding a new statement,

financial position including balances of the Statement of

beginning of the first presented comparative Comprehensive Income,
period in case of retrospective for the current and
implementation or change in an accounting comparative period.
policy or reclassification carried out by the

entity.

Income Statement (Profit or Loss)/ Statement

of Comprehensive Income
The entity shall disclose all recognized income
and expense captions during the financial year
in two separate statements; one of them
presents the profit or loss components (Income
Statement) and the other one starts with the
profit or loss and presents the other
comprehensive income items (Statement of
Comprehensive Income).
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New or Amended
Standards

Egyptian Standard No. (10)
Property, Plant and

Equipment (PPE)

Egyptian Standard No. (23)
Intangible assets

Egyptian Standard No. (45)
Fair Value Measurement

Egyptian Standard No. (2N

Business Combination

Summary of the Most Significant Amendments

¢ The option of using the revaluation model in
the subsequent measurement of PPE has

been canceled.

* The financial shall disclose & reconciliation of
the carrying amount — movement of the PPE
and its depreciations- in the notes
accompanying the financial statements at the
beginning and the end of the current period

and the comparable period.

* The strategic (major) spare parts and stand-by
equipment can be classified as PPE when the
entity expects to use them for more than one
period (when the definition of PPE applies

thereto).

The option of using the revaluation model in
the subsequent measurement of intangible

assets has been canceled

The new Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (45)
“Fair Value Measurement” was issued and shall be
applied when another Standard requires or allows
measurement or disclosure to be made at fair value,

This Standard aims the following:
{2) Defining the fair value

{b) Laying down a framework to measure the fair

value in one Standard,

(c) Identifying the disclosure required for the fair

value measurements.

¢ The purchase method was cancelled and
replaced by the acquisition method; as

results:

1- Changing the acquisition cost to become the cash
consideration transferred; and to be measured at
fair value at the acquisition date.

2- Contingent consideration: the fair value of the
consideration shall be recognized at the
acquisition date as a part of consideration

transferred.

Changing the method of measuring goodwill in
case of Step Acquisition is made.
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Possible Empact on the
Financial Statements

The amendment on the
standard has no impact on the
figures presented in the
financial statements.

The comparative figures
related to the PPE in the notes
accompanying the financial
statements have been re-
presented to be in conformity
with the required
amendments on the standard.

The amendment on the
standard has no impact on the
figures presented in the
financial statements.

The standard has been applied
prospectively on preparing the
inferim financial statements as at
March 31, 2016, including the
disclosure requirements stated in
this standard,

This amended standard has been
applied on business combination
which its acquisition date is on
or after January 1st, 2016.
Therefore, no amendments
have been made on the assets
and liabilities arising from
business combination that
occurred before January 1%,
2016.
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New or Amended
Standards

Egyptian -Standard No.(42)

The Consclidated Financial
Statements

Summary of the Most Significant Amendments Possible Impact on_the

Financjal Statements

+ The transaction cost (the cost related to the
acquisition):
Shall be charged to the Income Statement as an
expense in which the costs incurred it and shall
notbe added to the cash consideration
transferred; except for the costs of issuing equity
or debt instruments directly related to the
acquisition process.

¢ The new Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (42) The amendment on the

“The Consolidated Financial Statements” was standard has no impact on the

issued and accordingly Egyptian Accounting figures presented in the
Standard No. (17) “The Consolidated and financial statements.
Separate Financial Statements” has changed to

become “The Separate Financial Statements ',

Pursuant to the new Egyptian Accounting

Standard No. (42) “The Consolidated Financial

Statements” The control model has changed to

determine the investee entity that must be

consclidated,

¢ Accounting for the changes in the equity of
the parent company in a subsidiary are These amendments are not
accounted for as transactions with equity retroactively applied.

holders in their capacity as equity holders.

» Any Investment retained in a former
subsidiary re-measured at fair value at the
date when control is lost and reco gnize any
resulting difference in the Income Statement.

¢ Losses applicable to the Non-Controlling

Interest “NCI” in a subsidiary including
component of Other Comprehensive Income
are allocated to the owners of the holding
entity and the NCI even ifthis causes the NCJ
to have a deficit.
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New or Amended
Standards

Egyptian Standard No.(43}
Joint Arrangements

Egyptian Standard No. (18)
Investments in Associates

Summary of the Most Significant Amendments

* The new Egyptian Accounting Standard No. 43)
“Joint Arrangements” was issued and accordingly
Egyptian Accounting Standard No. (27) “Interests
in Joint Ventures”.

¢ According to the new Egyptian Accounting
Standard No. (43) “Joint Arrangements” a new
mode for the joint arrangements was laid down in
order to classifies and determine their kind
whether (Joint Venture) or (Joint Op eration).

As such, action depends on the substance of the
arrangement and not only its legal form.

In case the arrangement is classified as a joint
venture, each party of the arrangement parties
shall account for that investment using the equity
method only (as the proportionate consolidation
methed was eliminated) whether in the
Consolidated or Individual Financial Statements
issued thereby.

* The accounting treatment of the joint ventures
shall be added to this standard accordingly, the
Investments in associates and joint ventures shal}
be accounted for that investments using the equity
method in the Consolidated and Idividual
Financial Statements.

¢ The entity shall discontinue to use the Equity
method from the date when its investment ceases
to be an associate or a joint venture provided that
the refained interest shall be re-measured using the
fair value and the difference shall be recognized in
the Income Statement .

* If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
entity continue to apply the Equity Method and
does not re-measure the retained Interest.

* If an entity's ownership interest in an associate or
a joint venture reduced, but the entity continues to
apply the Equity Method, the entity shall reclassify
to profit or loss the proportions of the gain or loss
that previously been recognized in OCI relating to
that reduction in Ownership interest.
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Possible Impact on the
Financial Statements

The amendment on the standard
has no impact on the figures
presented in the financial
statements.

The amendment on the standard
has no impact on the
comparative figures presented.

No retroactive restatement are
applied with regard to
discontinue of using the equity
method if the date of
discontinuance of using the
equity method occurred in the
period before the application of
this amended standard and also,
with regard to the changes in the
Company’s interests in the
associate or the joint venture
with the continuance of using
the Equity Method.
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New or Amended
Standards

Egyptian Standard No. (44)
Disclosure of Interests in
Other Entities

Egyptian Standard No. (36)
Exploration for and
Evaluation of Mineral
Resources

Egyptian Standard No. (14)

Borrowing Costs

Egyptian Standard No. (41)
Operating Segments

Summary of the Most Significant Amendments

* A new Egyptian Accounting Standard No. {44)
“Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities” was
issued in order to comprise all the required
disclosures pertaining to the investments in
subsidiaries, associates, joint arrangements, and
the unconsolidated Structured Entities.

* The objective of this standard is to comply the
entity to disclose the information that enable
users of its financial statements to evaluate the
nature and risks associated with its interests in
other entities and the effects of those interests on
its financial position, financial performance, and
cash flows,

The option of using the revaluation model in
the subsequent measurement of the PPE and
intangible assets has been canceled.

Elimination of the previous benchmark
treatment that recognized the borrowing cost
directly atiributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying
asset in the Income Statement without bein g
capitalized on the asset.

EAS 33 “Segment Reports” has been replaced
with EAS (41) “Operating Segments”.
Accordingly, the disclosure and the volume of
the required disclosures that the Segment
Reports must disclose on; mainly depends on
the Segments information presented to Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM) of the
entity to make decisions on the resources that
must be allocated to the segment and assess its
performance,
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Possible Impact on the
Financial Statements

The amendment on the standard
has no impact on the
comparative figures presented.

The amendment on the standard
has no impact on the figures
presented in the financial
statements,

The amendment on the standard
has no impact on the figures
presented in the financial
statements.

Re-presenting the information
corresponding to the earlier
periods including the interim
periods has been made, unless
the information is not
available and the cost of
preparing such information is
too high.
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New or Amended Summary of the Most Significant Amendments

Standards

Egyptian Standard No. (25)
Financial Instruments: .
presentation

Egyptian Standard No. (40)
Financial Instruments: .
Disclosures

Any financial instrument with a resale right

shall be classified as an equity instrument
instead of classifying it as a financial
liability; if it meets the conditions in

accordance with the paragraphs (16 A or 16

b) or paragraphs (16 ¢ and 16 d) of the
same Standard, from the date the

Instrument has al] the features and meets all

the conditions set out in those paragraphs.
An entity shall re-classify the financial
instrument from the date the instrament
ceases to have all the features or meet all
conditions set out in those paragraphs.

A new Egyptian Accounting Standard No.

(40) “Financial Instruments: Disclosures

was 1ssued including all the disclosures
required for the financial instruments.
Accordingly, EAS (25) was amended by
separating the disclosures from it. The
namme of the Standard became "Financial
Instraments: Presentation” instead of
"Financial Instruments: Presentation and
Disclosure™
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Transiation ffom Arabic
Possible Impact on the

Financial Statements

Re-presenting any financial
instrument that meets all the
conditions including all the
presented comparative
periods have been made.

Retroactive amendment to all
the comparative figures of the
presented disclosures have
been carried out.
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0- Segment reporting

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments.
The primary format of business segments is based on the Group management and internal
reporting structure.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the year to acquire fixed assets and
intangible assets other than goodwill.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:
01l & gas sector.

Fertilizers, chemicals & plastic sector.

Other operations.

Other operations include the communications, geographical maps, agencies, and cooling
technology by natural gas activity, insurance activity and investment activity.

Geographical segments

The oil segment is managed on centralized basis, but is operated in Sudan. In presenting
information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue is based on the geographical
location of customers. Segment assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.
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7-

Equitv-accounted investees

Transtation from Arabic

Paid amoeunt Carrying Carrying

of amount asat amount as at

Description Legal form Ownership participation 30/92016 31122018
%, 0% UsD USD
noted ipvestments
Delta Insurance Co. SAE 32.02 100 14 732 964 14 189 472
Unguoted investments
Egyptian Co. for Qil Tankers S,A.E untder the 30 100 18 519 753 19 342 053
Private Free Zones
System
T *
Egyptian Hydrocarben Co. S.A‘.E under the - A ) 51 857 225
Private Free
Zones System
Building Material Industries 5.AE 30.068 100 50421 611 49 737 821
Co. ¥
El Sharouk for Mellamin & SAE 49,95 100 1492 414 1742 308
Resins Co.
Other associates SAE 13357 100 18 441 748 18 188 849
103 608 490 155 057 733

The fair value of the Group’s investments in associates listed in the BEgyptian Exchange
(Delta Insurance Co.) amounted to USD 5 158 736 at the consolidated balance sheet data
{2015: USD 5 500 633). '

The Group investment in Egyptian Hydrocarbon Co. has been reclassified as non-current assets
held for sale as mentioned in detail in note No. (25) below.

As from the beginning of 2013, its investment in Building Material Industries Co. has been
reclassified as an associate due to the availability of significant influence of the company’s
management over this associate through participation of its financial and operating policies, The
direct investment percentage is 15.068% and the indirect investment percentage through a
subsidiary is 15%. The investment cost in Building Material Industries Co. amounts to
USD 45 225 745.

The market value of the Company’s investments in Building Material Industries Co. amounted to
USD 62 769 146 according to the last transactions made on these shares.
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Egypt Kuwalt Holding Co.

(An Esvptian Jeint Stock Company)

Nates to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 ) Transiation from Arabic
Available for sale investments

Paid amount Balance . Balance
of as at as at
Description Legal form Ownership participation 30/9/2016 31/12/2015
% % USD USD
Investments at fair value
Portfolios managed by international 61071 223
investment managers (*} - - - 63 243 316
i ities li i ' 8 543 530
Local companies securities listed in S.A.E ) 100 8 597 595
the Egyptian Exchange companies
Investments measured at cost
Limited 30000 000
I Squared Capita! Investment Limited  Lia0ility Co. 15 100 30 000 000
at Cayman
Islands
Limited by 14190118
United Arab Chemical Carriers Co., Shares Co. 316 100 14 094 428
in UAE
Other companies ** 170761 304 50
284566 175 115930 389
Impairment loss (170761 304) -
113 804 871 115930 389

This item is represented in the value of the investment portfolios owned by the Company in Kuwait and as
from the beginning of 2012 they have been accounted for through the early adoption of IFRS (9) "Financial
Instruments” instead of EAS (26} "Financial Instruments: - Recognition and Measurement ". The said matter
resulied in recognizing gains and losses on the re-measurement of these portfolios at fair value including
the loss on disposal of part of them with total amount of USD 181.43 million that was inchided in equity
under fair value reserve out of which an amount of USD 179.48 million belengs to year 2015 and the

remaining amount belongs to the current year.

This item is represented in the value of investments in unconsolidated subsidiaries due to loss of control

over them during the period as mentioned in detail in note No. (50).

Held to maturity financial assets

30/9/2016 317122015
USsDh usD
Investment in Govermnmental bonds 57 936 664 -
57 936 664 -

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk related to cash at the banks and

on hand are disclosed in note No, (55).
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.
{An Egvptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016

10-

10-1

10-2

Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation

National Gas Co. “NATGAS" and Fayoum Gas Co. deal with the Egyptian General Petroleum
Corporation represented by the Egyptian Holding Company for Natural Gas (EGAS) according to the
agreements signed between the two parties. These agreements resulted in the following debit and credit

balances:

Debit balances

National Gas Company (NATGAS)

Egyptian Holding Company for Natural Gas (EGAS)
Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation

Favoum Gas Company

Egyptian Holding Company for Natural Gas (EGAS)
Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation

Classified as Follows:-
Current portion (due within one year)
Long — term portion (due after one year)

Credit balances

Represented in the following:

National Gas (NATGAS)

Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation

Favoum Gas Company
Egyptian Holding Company for Natural Gas (EGAS)
Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation

Classified as Follows:-
Current portion (due within one year)
Long - term portion (due after one year)

Transtation from Arabie

30/9/2016 31/122015
USDh USD

11 861 585 10224 382
- 11 401
11861 585 10235 783
2952 170 1 041 984
- 2 865 736
2952170 3907 720
14 813 755 14 143503
14813 755 14132102
- 11 401

30/9/2016 31/12/2015

USDh USD

70 433 370 46 843 907
70 433 370 46 843 907
- 572124
406 695 581 333
406 695 1153457
70 840 065 47 997 364
. 47416 032
70 840 065 581332

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk related to balances due to and
from Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation are disclosed in note No. (55).

-35.



TRSYON 210U 10 |1E13p U PAROURUL 58 Rovad s Supop

LIt §0%

et 85s

—9E-

1340 | 0103 40 S20] 13 35032 LImpsnns PIIEPIOSUOSUN UR 10 BI3S3E SY1 I0 UOHEISMSp pRIRINAMITE PUR 1500 BUY1 O aNJEA 3oy w pIRLIsAIcae 1 AN Ty
UsHEUSpun APURLD e safuwdut> 3o 4naag S po T 52111 Jo Jajsuen S) o spust fo Sid 36 angea sy) Aunuesardsl pUESHOGY LG (TSI O MOWE UE S3PI3L) L)) e
‘DIHT P 1>qumtdas ye se sy pereesdap Ainy 1o 1sos sy Funussdon €40 1oy TT QST 10 WNOWE UE IPAgIU S12ESE PR

626 98F 49T €91 £00 [F 6% b ThL 086 Bl 064 518 BLGOIET P S6L TE - rrLET 11
EE8 £02 FE) {LEE#L ) (TTr LL) (21t 00 &) [CTT ] {608 305 11 [COELT (veL poo ] [£959¢0 <! - PPt 86 E)
T 06T T0E okt 788 61 9E0 ] §L8 11008 Fay 15T o agt £1T a6 £0T 4 TIEITE ] 174 158 8¢ - BBOEFG 1L
1T 046 05T HRierr Tt BYL 66 995 L1 B8 b8 90 BRT 161 055 BLL FLTBPR £19 g 9% - BZE 668 DI
(£19 p86 0 (Brgos) P9 1200 (L9L 9L 1) {0s 297 ) {($8L ag 91} (T6T €Fr ) 1500 539 [££0 98 3 - (S0 255 #1
PIL BSG 14T £LE BEL 195 0eg 169 EFF 6T THE B5E FER L6t BOT PRI GEEPES | 08 9FL 55 - EEL ISP 51
[+9 £69 1ET 5% £E9 PR DL T PL0 9899 LELTSE ‘Otb LER BRI [TH POP SEB L st] 551 €1 - -
060 19E 8 (0 1087 142699 1} - oz ol - [N TN I65L EPR 1) (8Lt 6v8 T - -
(9% £59 1) - Bs0z) - - IFEs oLt 0 (zs6 91 ) (505 252 ) - - -
$06 95691 528 7% BES +91 651 9E9 PIR: "4 928 a4 {1 151 222 PEE D28 ¥55 5 | - -
N 6LL BT aLL 18] | 450 185 & R 9T pEL L LB FTT 9L a61 P50 ¢ FLL C9E & HWESIS 6 - -
B0 SLL PEE Bid 120 1 890 150 ¢ CLE IR0 Y 97T bt | Lig PECOLE 651 P09 Fil§0s 6 0%% 515 61 - -
(5L5 [8F E - (BES TE ) Lp6 BEE D L IT0E 500 1) [N r ] 1404 681 ) ek EIT 1) I8 Ea ) -
1926 585 ) - (€5 pak ) - {Lsn 1} {PhE QL) reoect 1086 #51) - - -
968 BSY - - - - - - - 98 65F - -
#5061 ET 989 tL PEE TOE 795 606 SR T PO FLO AL TEO SN L¥08Eg S0P LT T - -
cibEal o0 £PL400 | L1859 r WTLir s PIOETL L 6L 581 bS5 | SL068L € Fiz9sT e T $5L £8 -
S9E £50 fTL OTE £90 1 IS0 L5 € I£L 621 98 FHITH 194 5E9 L6g T [ GEE 199 1% - £EL Q5F 51
(g2l 09 €1} oz sy 1960 28E T - tIEz ol - IFIESET 1) [1BE9EL ¢} 1957 87 L) - -
(£81 5€9 00 - splz) - - 1185 268 2 (ze651) (505 192 } - - -
058 185 21 - 509 0z¢ LBZ 02 825 58 BEE0RE 01 401 528 iR TS T E9E - Gta g%
DEE $90 LTS LT5 00 1 LEE LB S 08t G50 9T 178 $80 ¢ 299 £ 1L 68 Eglgsze 9BF L8k 11 120 L5T 25 - B80 Ir L
038 000 {7 FEEETI [T D5F 650 9% OIES90 T REEE1L 635 [ ogb LBk E 180 L9 Bv - 830 Tho k)
(006 [96 € - 99¢ [§) [ L 13r9ve ) (896 €14 1) 169619 (T2 £81) 1964 £p1 13 ISE9 pEC ) -
l62T (09 ) - {082 00F ) - FI B 1oL ) iF R} (99 291) - - -
9 TES § - 04 168 i | . Tl 2 Gbs O£ £76 §F5 891 £0F 00 LBE - £19000 1
9Lk 001 T8 LTS P09 [ LTELFD S 100 FOE 9% a0 Sh T $09 665 065 689 S0 4 T8 6Er 11 SLLETOBY BE FES SER PG LD
Q50 280 asi asit a5 asn asn 8N asi (T81 asn0
THaL FHHOT AT FROEIGST 5 LIAULIGSuRT) G e rendmba T9an IELTEN RS TH “spuE; Jo S
Plogases] SSBLPICI ‘BIEL |05 a3 ¥ 5jo0), @ A1UnE 1 atnuang . i Smpyng 1ILs))
‘audwny w» suenEI§
SRR Wiy

SI0T “1¢ £aquraaag ye 5 umowu e Surzieyy
Stumpays wlianm] Jo pagE
S10C/1S1E 1% ' Junowe Jurdiey

GMIT 0E ._R._E.u_n_om 1B s¢ Jenone 3uglaen

DBUCL XD LENAL0) JO J93)50
DIBUBAE 1€ Se unowe Futiie)

GINLGHE 18 ST usuLEdWI pue uogedap paeuoay
| HIUIOD J8

SE0] Gt 1P $195FE Jo pesoden Jo nonesaudsp prenwnasy
1 1P 4 o P P v

pouad stj) 1 vanensadag

210%/141 12 ST sy eduy pue nonmaudap pajepuihiny

i1 Il put uoiengdsp p v

LANZ300 panuNLDsSn

Jo sasse 1o reclut pue LoNEandap parer W
1 TP 30 o] ¥

azak 2 ...Dm hu%au—_" Juaatenedin
JE34 A IO} MOHEIAAI030
ST/ 1e ST Juatueding put donezadap peIEnunasy

DLOZIGN0E 18 5% 1500

wu [0203 J0 550] 0] anp £)255% [0 pasedaP J0 150
pouxd s fump sresodstg
popad oy Juunp susuippy

SIOTT/ e ST sy

SHTTNTL VB 58 1805

UONRIAAS PIGISE 10 S126SE 16 180,
124 ) Funnp spesodstr

AR 31 FULRP SULIPRY

CIBE/1/1 3058 150.)

tE)

*x

{7JU53) FUIUINES [HIOREUT) pajepnosnea ) 03 SHOK

i ) AFNS 1Mo uR

E V)

"0 oy esny wiiy



-fE

(06} on MU Ut [reRp UK patanusi sk pofsad oY) BULIN 1L ISAC [01000 JO 5507 0] NP ARIPISGNS P2IEPI[OSLICIUN L) §0 SJO55E 3if1 Jo voa{dap pue ucnEsadsp pare|mnnooE pue soo s Ul papuesardal st wey snpj, *.

£70 718 65

IFb v65 €6 - £89 ZI ZBZ 0TL ZE PSP 610 1 -
(z£1 999 955 ) (566 65t ) (££8 618 651) {196 040 1€1) (F128EP 9E1)  (SEO08LH01) (PSR S60¥T)
TE1 999 956 566 65F £L3 618 65! 196 040 1€1 +18 8eb 951 S£9 084 FO1 PS8 $60 ¥T
(£S5 09T 059} (S66 65y ) (955 TE8 651 ) {CrE 164 €91) (£€8052961)  {6800£8501) (58660 HT)
¥LS 09T 059 $66 651 956 7€ 651 £5T 164 £91 LER QST 961 630 0£2 501 ¥58 C60 2
asn asn asn asin asn asn asn
[%I0F HODAN.DSUG) SHUT| 2dig [FATEWE] ETE SHIM JO S[PAL)D oil
2IPEf) PRYusWdmMby Buronpoxg yuawdopaag uoneIopdxy  #ION

JIGOAF Wr0f] HOJUISTRT
HQUAY i) OIS

SINZ/Z1/1€ W Junome Foyfiwey

9107/6/0€ ye Junome BuidLe)

910Z/6/0¢
Je se juawadun pue soiezyiows wogardep pagemmnady

% [CIUO2 JO S50} O anp s)asse jo pasodsip jo uons|dop poyeniumooy

potiad 2y 107 uonajdac]

Q10z/1/1 e se Eo..EEmE_ PUE uCTiRZ)JI0WE ‘UoTR]dep PoiRmuINDey

niTwIEdul] PAE GONEZRI0WE oGa[dop pIIERImIsy

S10Z/6/0¢ 18 150D

# [OLU0D JO S50] 0] 2Np $)98SE JO PasodSIp J0 1507
potiad 21 Sunnp suomppy

9IOT/T/1 1B 50D
1807y

S1355% oWdOaASD DUE GONELO[ITT “T]

16T DL 1IGUTIERG FAPUF POTIFT [DITIHE AT 107
{inan) 1o [ 2 2ifd o7 SPON




Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.
(An Egvptian Joint Stock Company)
Notes to the consolidated financia? statements {Cont.)

For the financial pericd ended September 30, 2016

13- Projects under construction

This balance is represented as follows: -

Transtation fiom drabic

30/9/2016 314272015
_ USD Usb
Construction of plant for fertilizers using nitrogen 14 471 667 14 471 667
Advance payments for purchasing of property, plant and 6116 601 2745307
equipment
Buildings and constructions 74 661 1043989
Others 2 800793 6 856 735
23463722 25117698
Impairment losses (14 471 667) (14471 667)
8992 (55 10 646 031
14- Goodwill
This balance is represented in the following:
30/9/2016 3112/2015
UsD Ush
The carrying amount of goodwill relating to National Gas Co.
(NATGAS) . 13987971 15866 151
The carrying amount of geodwill relating to Plastichem Co. 19730 069 22379 246
The carrying amount of goodwill relating to Fayoum Gas Co., 23874212 3260137
The carrying amount of goodwill relating to Alex Fert Co. 34107324 34107 324
. 706089 574 75612 858
15- Other intangible assets (net)
This balance is represented as follows:
- Balance Additions Net
as at during the Amortization Foreign as at
1/1/2016 peried for the period exchange 30/9/2016
UsD UsD USD UsSDh Ush
Deferred charges (*) 6 089424 - (676 3707 {699 493) 4713 561
Right of use (**) 21217970 - (3 819235) - 17398 735
Water rights 3 000000 - - - 3000000
30307394 - {4495 605) (699 493) 25112296
Impairment Josses (3 000 000) - - - {3 000 000)
27307394 - {4 495 605} (699 493) 22 112296

(*)  This item represents the additional actual costs incurred by National Gas Co.- NATGAS for carrying
out of the works related to Nubaria Electrical Station that has not recovered from Egyptian Natural
Gas (EGAS) including the grant of signing the agreement for Gas sales commission for the station
first operation year which will be amortized over 15 years from the agreement term which is 20 years.

**

The right of use item is represented in the amounts paid to a related party as a right to use of the

ammonia export pipeline owned by the related party on exporting the ammonia produced by the
Group. According to the settlement contract, the outflow of the future economic benefiis is expected

to be obtained over ten years.
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co,

(An Fgvptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 Translation from Arabic
Other debtors

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
UsSD UsD
Property, plant and equipment selling receivables 158 390 225224
Notes receivable - 2558
158 350 227782

The Group’s exposure to credit and foreign currency risks related to debtors is disclosed i
note No. (55).

Unrecognized deferred tax assets
———-—ﬂ——_._._.._,____

30/92016 314272015
UsDh UsD
Deductible temporary differences 3935 908 4 048 267
3935908 4048 267

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these items because it is not probable that
future taxable profit will be available, against which the Company can utilize the benefits therefrom.

Cash at banks & on hand

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
USD USsD

" Cash on hand 633 147 237 565
Bank ~ current accounts 38 334 999 35826 786
Bank ~ time deposits (less than three month) 111170234 335773131
Bank — time deposits (more than three month} 187 632 458 20000 950
Checks under collection 5138 832 4928 614
342 909 670 396 867 046

For the purpose of preparing the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash & cash equivalents item
is represented as follows:

30/9/2016 30/9/2015
UsD USD

Cash atbanks & on hand 342 909 670 309088 106
Add:

Investments in treasury bills note No. (19 5745 181 2492 507
Less:

Bank — time deposits (more than three month) 187 632 458 7 400 940
Bank overdraft - Local banks note No, (38) 587 757 3246716
Blocked deposits - 35127 844
Cash & cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows 160 434 636 265805113

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk related to cash at banks & on
hand are disclosed in note No. (55).
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

{An Epvptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016

Investments in treasury bills

Treasury bills (due in 3 month)
Treasury bills (due more than 3 month)
Income from investment in treasury bills (not due yet)

Translation fron Arabic

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
USD USD
5745 131 6 104 679

25038 476 -

(1361 382) (60 033)

29422 275 6 044 646

The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency risk related to cash at banks & on

hand are disclosed in note No. (55).

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

This item is represented in the market value of the portfolios owned by the Group, which consist of
Egyptian companies stocks and portfolios managed by investment managers abroad for the purpose of

dealing in international stock exchanges. These investments are represented as follows:

Portfolios managed by international investment managers
Egyptian Companies’ stocks (listed in the Egyptian Exchange)
Investments in direct mutual funds

Govermnmental bonds

Market value of held for trading investments

Trade & notes receivable

Local customers

Export customers

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Notes receivable

30/9/2016 31/1212015
USD UsD
10 369 174 56 282 439
1461098 1521 441
3385570 54 691794
9 808 343 -
25024 185 112 495 674
30/9.2016 31/12/2015
UsSD USD
18 899 494 62 598 530
6424 086 3848076
25 323 580 66 446 606
{216 356) (248 968)
25107 224 66 197 638
7053076 3369294
32 160 300 69 566 932

-~ The Group’s exposure to credit and foreign currency risks related to trade receivables is disclosed in

note No. (55).
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.
- {An Egvptian Jeint Stock Companv)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Cont.)

For the financial period ended Septernber 30, 2016

*

&k

Debtors & other debit balances

Due from Sudapet Co.and Nilepet Co.

Tax Authority

Prepaid expenses

Deposits with others

Imprests & employees advances
Uncollected bilis

Suppliers - advance payments

Change in crude oil value due from partners
Accrued revenues

Due from El Shorouk for Melamine & Resins Co. — an associate
Other debit balances

Due from Carbon Holdings Co.

Due from unconsolidated subsidiaries *
Due from Petro Gas Co.

Impairment loss on debtors & other debit balances **

Translation from Arabic

30/9/2016 31/12/2018
USD USD
- 22149 309
2989 730 4786 935
1901713 1992 603
3789 581 2100 586
587235 388 718
30 989 §52 36 022 409
5237920 5477789
- 18 212 937
8461 652 5085 866
2728 459 2987 201
18 540 925 30022 355
; 10 519 685
136 698 567 -

1296 505 -
213222 139 139 746 393
(104 931 104) (1 236 425)
108 291 035 138 509 968

This amount is represented in the value of balances due from an unconsolidated subsidiary at

September 30, 2016 due to loss of control over it as mentioned in details in note No. (50).

This balance includes an amount of USD 104 127 068 representing the impairment losses on the
balances due from an unconsolidated subsidiary as at September 30, 2016 due to loss of control over

it as mentioned in detail in note No. (50).

The Group’s exposure to credit and foreign currency risks related to debtors is disclosed in note No.

(55).

Inventories

Supplies — held on the gas company warehouses

- Supplies — subconiractors’ warehouses

Tools & equipment

Crude oil

Basic & secondary raw materials
Goods in transit

Spare parts & supplies
Packaging materials

Work in process

Finished goods

Letters of credit

Goods held with others

Write down of inventories

-41-

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
USD USD
11079 018 7991 585
1 840410 1393 466
. 177 994
. 135 339
15 357 634 19 830 495
2714 438 1258 960
14 406 204 27214 155
186 028 110 589
5357 445 2117028
6331636 6216 615
56876 2371 006
493 318 -
57 823 007 68817232
) (970 524)
57823 007 67 846 708
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

{An Egvptian Joint Stock Company}

Notes to the consclidated financial statements {Cont.)

For the financial period ended Sentember 30, 2016 Transtation fiom Arabic
Work in progress

This item is represented in the expenditures pertaining to projects of gas customers — commercial and
house sector that have not been delivered yet to those customers of National Gas Company

(NATGAS) at the consolidated balance sheet date and also to the expenditures of other projects as
follows: '

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
USb USD
Cost of gas customers projects 10620 263 8232611
Cost of other projects 198 264 163 284
10818 527 8 395 895

Assets held for sale

The assets of a subsidiary within other Operating segment was presented as non-current assets held for
sale as at September 30, 2016, whereas, an approval on selling offer have been taken during the
financial period ended as at September 30, 2016, with respect to selling the entire number of shares
owned by the Group in this company of which it owns 26% of the shares of a company {associate
company) to a third party outside the Group. There are no impairment losses in value when measuring
the investment at book value or fair value less the selling cost, whichever is less.

Non-current assets held for sale

30/9/2016 31122015
USD USD
Equity-accounted investees 37064 009 -
Debtors and other debit balances 1303 996 -
38368 005 -
Liabilities held for sale
30/9/2016 3171272015
USD USD
Accrued expenses 4 600 -
4 600 -
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.
An Egvptian Joint Stock Company
Nates to the consolidated financial statements {Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 Transiation from Arabic

26-

27-

29-

Share capital
The Company’s authorized share capital is USD 500 million (Five hundred million USD),

The issued capital was initially determined amounted to USD 120 million {One hundred & twenty
million USD) distributed over 12 million shares at a par value of USD 10 per share. The Founders
and subscribers through methods other than public subseription have subscribed to 9 million shares at
a value of USD 90 million (Only ninety million USD) 3 million shares at USD 30 million (Only thirty
million USD) were offered for public subscription and they were fully underwritten. The issued
capital was paid in full, The issued capital has been increased and the share of the Company was split
several times to reach an amount of USD 243 914 564.5 distributed over 975 658 258 shares of par
value of US Cent 25 each paid in full.

On June 11, 2015, the extra-ordinary general assembly of the Company unanimously approved the
increase of the issued and paid — up capital from USD 243 914 564.5 to USD 256 110 292.5 with an
amount of increase of USD 12 195 728 as bonus increase distributed over 48 782 912 bonus share
whose nominal value amounts to 25 Cent for the purpose of financing the incentive & bonus plan of
the Company’s employees and managers and executive board of directors members.

On June 11, 2015, the ordinary general assembly of the Company unanimously approved to transfer
part of the retained carnings of the Company as shown in the consolidated financial staternents for
the financial year ended at December 31 » 2014 that were approved by the sharsholder's’ ordinary
general assembly held on March 22, 2015 to 48 782 912 bonus shares  with an amount of
USD 12 195 728 for the purpose of financing the incentive & bonus plan of the Company’s
employees and managers and executive board of directors members, that has been approved by the
Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority on November 12, 2014. Annotation to effect such increase
was made on the Company’s commercial register on September 13, 2015, Accordingly, the issued
capital is USD 256 110 292 distributed over 1 024 441 170 shares with a par value of USD 25 cent
each that is paid in full. '

Legal reserve

According to the Companies” Law and the Parent Company's statue, the Company is required to set
aside 5% of the annual net profit to form a legal reserve. The transfer to legal reserve ceases once the
reserve reach 50% of the issued share capital. The reserve is not distributable. However, it can be
used to increase the share capital or offset losses. The Parent Company is required to resume setting
aside 5% of the annual net profit until it reaches 50% of the issued share capital of the Parent
Company. If the reserve falls below the defined level {50% of the issued share capital}, then the
Company is required to resume setting aside 5% of the annual net profit until it reaches 50% of the
issued share capital. The legal reserve balance includes an amount of USD 89 528 204 representing
the amount credited to the legal reserve according to the provision of Article No. (94) of the executive
regulations of law No. 159 of 1981 related to the addition of the share premium to the legal reserve
until equal to half of the issued capital out of which an amount of USD 17 045 454 was credited to the -
legal reserve from the value of capital increase made during 2014,

Special reserve — share premium

The balance amounting to USD 57 954 547 ig represented in the remaining amount of the share
premium collected from the share capital increase of a number of 136 363 636 shares during 2014
after deducting the amounts credited to the legal reserve.

General reserve

General reserve item represents the amounts set aside from the Parent Company’s profits in previous
years according to the resolutions of the General Assembly meeting of sharcholders of the Parent
Company. This reserve shall be used by a resolution from the General Assembly of shareholders
based on a propesal from the Parent Company’s board of directors in matters that could be favorable
to the Company’s interests,
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016

30- Fair value reserve

This item includes the cumnulative net change in the fair value of available-for-

the investment is derecognized.

31-

mentioned in details in note No. (52) below.

32-

Amount set aside for share-based payments transactions

The balance of this item amounting to USD 9 680 433 as at S
increase in the equity related to granting and allocatin

Foreign currency translation differences of foreien operations

The balance shown in the equity section as at Sep
translation adjustments resulting from translatin

currencies to US Dollars for the purpose of

financial statements for the financial period en
includes a share in the cumulative translatio

associates.

33-

Non-controlling inierests

Translation from Arabic

sale investments unfil

eptember 30, 2016 is represented in the
g the shares of the incentives and bonus plan as

tember 30, 2016 is represented in the cumulative
g the financial statements of subsidiaries from foreign

consolidating these statements in the consolidated

ded at September 30, 2016. In addition, this balance
. adjustments included in the consolidated equity of

The balance of non - controlling interests of USD 229 999 910 as at September 30, 2016 is
represented in their share in subsidiaries’ equity as follows:

National Gas Co. “NATGAS”
{consolidated)

Globe Telecom Co. (consolidated)

Globe for Communications &
Information Technology Co.

International Financial Investments Co.

Energy Group

Cooling Technology by Natural Gas
Co.- Gas Chill

Midor for Logistic Services Co.

Fayoum Gas Co.

Sprea Misr for Production of Chemicals
& Plastics Co,

Henosis for Construction & Real-Estate
Development Co.

Capital Investment Limited Luxembourg

Middle East for River Transport Co.

Bawabat Al Kuwait Holding
Company

Arabian Company for Fertilizers

Non-
controfling
in terests

%
16.025

0.07

14,014

0.11

2201

0.01

3012

0.01
001
5833

25.28

Non-controlling

Non-contrelling
share in equity

Non-controlling

Non-controlling

sharein subsidiaries excluding profits ) Interests interests
profits (losses) {losses) asat asat
for theperiod  for the period 30/92016 311272015
USD USD UsD UsD
5702121 8176251 14 878372 11192381
375 1165 1540 1402
- 10 446 10 444 11 8483
3o 46 198 49218 57402
257 3 849 4106 27603 092
53023 (254 395) (201 372) 2552260
(@) 160 158 161
261 356 646 305 907 661 814 094
2304 6432 8736 73526
(22) 214 192 -
() 2 2 -
- 306 306 306
4 461 920 209 906 079 214367999 227 569 379
(1 626} (25 825) (27 451) (25 825)
10 482 723 219 517 187 229999910 269 784 026
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

{An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the finaneial period ended September 30, 2014 Traustation firom Arabic

34- Long-term loans & bank facilities

- This note provides information about the confractual terms of the Group’s loans, which are measured at

amortized cost. For more information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency and
liquidity risks see note No. (55). '

30/9/2016 3171272015
UsD UsD

A-Loans & bank facilities granted to Egypt Kuwait Holding Company

The value of USD loan granted to the Company from a bank according to the medium- 90 100 000 94 000 106
term finance agreement of USD 100 million dated October 6, 2011 for the purpose of

financing the industrial investments of the Group. The loan is to be repaid over 4 equal
annual installments starting from 30/6/2012 and ending on 30/6/2015, The loan is
guaranteed by the pledge of the investment portfolic owned by one of the subsidiaries
whose market value amounting to approximately KD 49.9 million as at Septerber 8,
2011. The loan bears an interest rate of 2% above LIBOR for 3 month. During
December 2012, the negotiation was made with the bank to increase the loan to USD
125 million and to modify the payment schedule so that the loan is paid over 4 annual
nstallments starting 30/9/2013 and ending 30/9/2016, each installment amounts to USD
25 million except the last installment which will be USD 50 million. The contract is
currently under signing after being amended.

During October 2014, it was agreed with the bank to amend the payment schedule so
that the Joan is paid over 3 annual installments starting from 30/9/2015 and ending on
30/9/2017, each installment amounts to USD 25 million except the last installment
which will be USD 50 million. During September the bank agreed to postpone the
accrued installment from 30/9/2015 to 30/6/2016, Negotiations with the bank is
currently in process to modify the loan re-payment schedule,

Represents the balance of the medium - term loan granted to the Company from a bank 24 600 000 30200 000
with an amount of L.E 280 million or the equivalent in foreign currency for the purpose -

of financing the Company’s activities according to the financing contract concluded

with the bank during September 2014.The loan is to be repaid over 5 years and the

withdrawal duration is 6 month starting from the date of approval. The loan bears an

interest rate of the declared CORRIDOR. lending rate of 2.7 % with minimum rate of

12% per annum including commission on the highest debit balance on the indebtedness

in Egyptian Pound and bears 4% above LIBOR for three month on the indebtedness in

foreign currency.

B- Loans & bank facilities granted to NATGAS Company

The amount used of the loan granted to the Company from a bank amounting to L.E 86 - . 8028 704
million with annual interest rate of 11% according to the CORRIDOR rate on deposit in

addition to 2.25 % to finance the purchase of assets specialized for Borg El Arab

project. The loan shall be repaid over 16 semi-annual installments. The first installment

due on 30/4/2010 till 31/10/2017 and an insurance policy shall be issued on all the

financed assets in favor of the bank.

The ameunt used from the loan granted to the Company by a bank with an amount of 774 956 1159 691
L.E 20 million at an annual interest rate of 10.5 % to finance the purchase of assets for

Borg Al Arab project. The loan shall be settled on ninety six monthly installments

starting from 19/11/2010 tilf 19/11/2018.

C/F 115 474 956 133 388 501
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

(An Egvptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Cont.)

Eor the financial period ended September 30, 2014
B/F

The equivalent to the amount used from the loan granted to the Company by one of the
banks with an amount of L.E 200 million or its equivalent in foreign currency for the
purpose of utilizing such amount in financing Burj Al-Arab station. The loan shall be
settled on 22 quarterly installments; the first installment shall fal] due on 1/2/2018 till
1/5/2023 with an annual interest rate of 1.5 % above the lending rate of the indebtedness
in the Egyptian pound; and an annual interest rate of'5 % above the LIBOR of the
indebtedness in foreign currencies.

C- Loans granted to Alex Fert

The Company concluded a contract with Ahli United Bank for a mediym-term loan
with an amount of USD 50 million, The Company has used an amount of USD 46.9
million from the available loan balance based on the contract with the bank on July 22,
2014,

The loan is secured by a first class commercial official mortgage on some of the
production assets owned by the Compauy. The loan is to be repaid acecording to the
schedules in the contract over 10 semiannual installments starting from the date of using
the loan. Starting from June 2015, the Company pays the loan on monthly nstallments
and the loan interest rate is variable and is determined in the light of the average LIBOR,
of six months in addition to a margin,

Loans related to subsidiaries
Deduci:
Total current portion of long-term loan (note No. 39)

Balance as at September 30, 2016

Other long-term liabilities -

This balance is represented in the following;-

Customers ~ advance payments for electricity connection
Deferred income

Translation fiom Avabic

115474 956 - 133388 501
4449 973 -
26 576 667 33611 668
- 73110 406
146 501 596 240110575
167435834 117012 826
39 065 762 123 097 749
30/9/2016 31/12/2015
USD USD
655 728 795 265
27926 38715
683 654 833 980

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency and liquidity risks related to long-term liabilities are disclosed

in note No. (55).

Deferred tax Habilities

Deferred tax Habilities are attributable to the following:-

Property, plant and equipment & other assets

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
USD UsSD
28 537 141 25721 891
28537 141 29721 891




Egypt Kuwait Holding Co,

{An Egvptian Joint Steck Company}

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Cont)
For the financial period ended September 30, 2016

Provisions

37-

Movement on provisions during the period is represented as follows:-

Transiation fiom Arabic

Provisions
Provisions derecognized Provisions Provisions -
Balance formed due to loss of reclassified  Provisions used no tonger Foreign Balance
as at during control in during the during required during  exchapge as at
1/1/2016 the period a subsidiary eriod the peried the period differences 30/9:2016
Usn USD USD Ush UsD USD UsDh USD
Provision for technical
risks of works 414215 - - - (159 643) - - 254 570
Provision for other " "
iabilities- short term 13 259407 32506777 (2126 739) 4070000 (114 603Y (9869 021) (849 439) 36876382
Provision for onerous
contracts 153 487 - - - - {11 641} {17 802) 124 044
Tota! provisions classified -
as current liabilities 13 827 109 32506777 (2 126 739) 4070000 (274 248) (9880 662) (867 241) 37254996
Provision for other
liabilities — classified as 4 070 000 - - 4 070 00O - - - -
non —current liabilities
Total 17 897 109 32506777 (2126 739) - (274 248) (9 880 662) (867241 37254996
38- Bank-overdraft
This balance shown on the consolidated balance sheet of USD 4 827 976 as at September 30, 2016 is
represented as follows:
30/9/2016 31/12/2015
. USD USD
The value of the temporary bank facilities granted to the Group and guaranteed by
some of investment portfolios owned the Group as stated in note No. (20} Above, 4239219 42333384
Bank overdrafi from local banks 587757 401766
4 826 976 42735150
- For more information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency, liquidity risks see
note No. (55).
39- Short — term loan installments & bank facilities .
This balance shown on the consolidated balance sheet amounting to USD 191 256 146 as at
September 30, 2016 is represented in the loan installments and bank facilities balance granted to the
Group as follows: _
30/9/2016 317122015
USD usb
Current portion of loans and bank facilities as stated in note No. (34) below, 107 435 834 117012826
Credit facilities granted to the Parent Company and International Financial 69 145 547 92 689 352
Investments Company (*) _
Credit facilities granted to Cooling Technology by Natural Gas Co. 112786 4604 482
Credit facilities granted to Sprea Miisr for Production of Chemicals & Plastics Co(**) 2329449 2451312
Credit facilities granted to Fayoum Gas Co. (***) - .
Credit facilities granted to NATGAS (##++%) 12 232 530
Balance as at September 30, 2016 191 256 146 216757972
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{An Egvptian Joint Stock Companv)

Notes to the consolidated financial statéments (Cont.)

For the financial perind ended September 30, 2015 Translation firom Arabic

The credit facilities balance granted to the Parent Company and International Financial Investments

Company as at September 30, 2016 is represented as follows:

The amount used from the bank facility granted from a bank, according to the agreement
concluded with the bank on August 15, 2012 with a total amount of L.E 150 million and
bears an interest rate of 2.25% above CORRIDOR rate with minimum 10% for Egyptian
pound withdrawals and 3.25% above LIBOR rate for 3 month for US dollar withdrawals,
On August 31, 2015 it was agreed to renew and increase the facility limit with a total
amount of LE 180 million that it’s to be used within a maximum ameunt of USD 13.6
million in dollars and the rest to be used in Egyptian pounds and the facility ends on May
31, 2016. On November 10, 2016, the credit facility contract was renewed to another
period that will be ended as at October 30, 2016 until finalizing the renewal procedures.

The amount used from the bank facility granted from a bank, according to the agreement
concluded with the bank on September 17, 2015 it was agreed to grant the facility with a
total amount of LE 200 million or it’s equivalents in foreign currency that bears an
interest rate of 1% above CORRIDOR. rate with minfmum 11.25% per annum for
Egyptian pound indebtedness and 4% in addition to the borrowing rate of the bank
indebtedness in foreign currency.

The amount used from the bank facility granted to the Company and International
Financial Investments Company - a subsidiary- a credit facility in EGP and USD with a
total amount of USD 26 million (or EGP equivalent to a maximum of LE 173.714
million) till 30/11/2013, in accordance with the bank agresment on February 2, 2013 for
the purpose of financing the working capital requirements including financing the
dividends and the short term investments. The facility bears an interest rate of 0.75%
above the lending Corridor (currently 10,25%) for Egyptian pound withdrawals and 2.5%
above LIBOR for 3 month for issuance of a signed promissory note for both companies
with a total amount of USD 26 million. On August 10, 2015 it was agreed to renew the
facility for one vear and the facility ends on July 31, 2016, On Qctober 30, 2016, the credit
facility contract was renewed to another period that will be ended as at November 30,
2016 until finalizing the renewal procedures.

The amount used of this bank facility by International Financial Investments Company
amounts to L.E 33 304 677 as at September 30, 2016.

The amount used from the bank facility granted from a bank, according to the agreement
concluded with the bank on April 6, 2015 with a total amount of USD 25 million that
bears an interest rate of 1% above U.S. dollar deposits, On July 26, 2015 It was agreed to
increase the facility with a total amount of USD 63 million the facility bears an interest
rate of 1% above deposit interest and that facility under the guarantee of company deposits
with the bank.

Represented in the amount used from the credit facility granted to the Company by one of
the banks in accordance with the agreement concluded with the bank on July 1, 2014
based on which an approval to grant the Company credit facilities within the limit of LE.
350 million or its equivalent in foreign currency, with an interest rate of 1.5 % above the
Corridor rate including the commission on the highest debit balance without minimum
limit on debit balance with Egyptian Pound and 4% in addition to the lending rate of the
bank for the indebtedness in foreign currencies. '

_AR-

30/920146 31/12/.2015
UsDh USD
18 182 774 20028 824
21459 935 14323 624
18 228 881 22729 108
. 35 607 796
11273 957 ;
69 145 547 92 689 352




Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.
(An Fovptian Joint Stock Company)
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Cont.)

For the financial period ended Septermber 30, 2016

Transiation from Arabic

(**) The credit facilities balance granted to Sprea Misr for Production of Chemicals & Plastics Co. and

¢+ (***)  The bank facilities item

i‘(»aus:**)

Plastichem Co.as at September 30, 2016 is represented as follows:

The amount used from the bank facilities granted to Sprea Misr for Production of
Chemicals & Plastics Co. and Plastichem Co. from a bank with a tota] amount of
L.E 127.975 million and USD 500 000 and bears an interest rate of 2% per annum
above CORRIDOR rate for Egyptian pound and 3% above LIBOR rate for US
Doliar, and guaranteed by promissory note, trust receipt and insurance policy on the
assets of the Group against all risks in favor of the bank.

The amount used from the credit facilities granted to the Company from a bank with
total amount of L.E 120 million that bears an interest rate of 0.7 5% per annum abeove
the average CORRIDOR rate.

The amount used from the credit facilities granted to the Company from a bank with
tota] amount of L.E 120 million that bears an interest rate of 0.5% per annum above
the average CORRIDOR. rate and guaranteed by a corporate guarantee from
Plastichem Co, and the insurance against burglary and fire on the assets of Speria
Cp. and its subsidiaries in favor of the bank.

following:

The used amount from the credit facilities granted to the Company from a bank
with a total amount of L.E 50 million and bears average interest rate of 10% per
AN,

30/9/2016 3141272015
UsD USD
2328 057 536881

- 3450
1392 1910 981
2329 449 2451312

30/9/2016
USD

granted to Fayoum Gas Co. as at September 30, 2016 is represented in the

31712/2015
USD

The bank facilities item granted to NATGAS Co. as at September 30, 2016 is represented in the

following:

Represented in the amount used from the credit facilities granted to the
Company by one of the banks with a total amount of L.E. 60 million with
an interest rate of 13.5 % and monthly commission on the highest debit
balance by 0.05% to finance the company's projecs.

Represented in the amount used from the credit facilities granted fo the
Company by one of the banks with a total amount of L.E. 80 million with
an interest rate of 13 % to finance the company's projects,

Represented in the amount used from the credit facilities granted to the
Company by one of the banks with a total amount of L.E. 106 million with
an interest rate of 13.55 % and monthly commission on the highest debit
balance by 0.075% to finance the company's projects,

30/9/2016
UsD

3937371

7727269

567 890

311272015

UsD

12232 530

For more information about the Group’s exposure to interest rate, foreign currency, liquidity risks see note

No. (55).
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

{An Egyptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Cont}

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016
40- Suppliers & subcontractors

Sundry suppliers
Deferred payments to subcontractors

Notes payable

Transiation from Arabic

30/9/2016 3171272015
USD USD
15 468 367 83 371 980
20 200 22912
15 488 567 83 394 892
263 600 181 561
15752 167 83 576 453

- The Group’s exposure to foreign currency and liquidity risk related to suppliers are disclosed in note No. (55).

41- Creditors & other credit balances

Customers - advance payments

Accrued expenses

Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation*
Deposits to others

Income tax payable

Estimated income tax

Deferred income of minimum commission
Installments under collection

Uneamed revenue of gas distribution commissions
Accrued interest on loan

Deferred income — current portion

Loans from non-controlling interests
Other credit balances

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
USD usD
43991 090 52 813 082
27 148 955 49 612 933
14113 732 19 557 406
12 273 076 12 326 836
863 786 13 875 959
18717 802 -
- 6528 415
3291 245 3918002
- 5095 403
1901 4 995 950
8275 9386
- 4900 000
23 767 658 30 790 036
144 177 520 204 423 408

On May 6, 2014 , an agreement has been signed to reschedule the indebtedness due to the Egyptian

General Petroleum Corporation as at June 30, 2013 from subsidiary with a net amount of

EGP 125 552 293 to be repaid over three years. An amount of L.E 107 00

0 000 was paid until

September 30, 2016. Accordingly, the said indebtedness balance as at September 30, 2016 amounted

to USD 2 091 578 equivalent to L.E. 18 552 293.

- The Group's exposure to foreign currency and liquidity risks related to creditors are disclosed in note

No. (55).
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.
{An Egvptian Joint Stock Companv}

Notes to the consolidated finanectal statements {Cont.)

For the finanetal period ended September 30, 2016

42- Operating revenues

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016

Transiation fiom Arabic

The nine-month ended 30/8/2015

43-

(as supplies activity revenues
Communication & geographic maps
activity revenue

Agencies activity revenue
Chemicals & plastic activity revenue
Cooling technology by natural gas
activity revenue

Fertilizers activity revenne

Operating costs

Gas supplies activity cost
Communication & geographic maps
activity cost '
Agencies activity cost

Chemicals & plastic activity cost
Cooling technology by natural gas
activity cost

Fertilizers activity cost

44-

Income from investment activity

From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 34/9/2016 till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2013 Ell 30/9/2013
Usb USD UsD USD

33 742 849 75 976 403 22195612 65 058 342

(3339) 187 860 109 038 229 165
455 321 1718 223 382918 1491170
31 669 280 94 376 599 23 663 073 74 847 323
576 690 2519 884 254 916 1366 586

21 803 204 93 372 640 8 692 443 45 254 520
88 244 003 268 351 609 55298 000 188 247 106

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016

The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 30/2/2016 till 30/9/2016 till 30/9°2015 till 30/9/2015
USDh USD USD 1SD
11 050 755 37610310 15223 629 42 739 579
157 495
18 760 45189 95150
341 703 12903595 304 332 1176812
20135194 61 445 580 17030 384 52 927 480
408 670 1 993 8§95 197 646 1292076
20 658 680 78 986 539 14 381 493 50 467 815
52614 762 181 484 414 47 182 673 148 698 912

Gain (loss} on sale of held for trading
nvestments

Income from held for trading investments

Unrealized gain on held for trading
mnvestments

Gain on sale of available -for- sale
Investments :
Income from available -for- sale
investments

Income from treasury bills

Income from governmental bonds

The nine~-month ended 30/9/2016

The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
il 30/9/2016 till 30972016 - il 30/9/2015 till 30/92015

USD USD USD USD
(2 146) 150 622 ( 11305} 377
- 7101 - 366
178 493 1484 144 (944 786} 888 128
) i 24 988 4713291
156 354 6862482 514 454 10 061 551
971 225 3053 534 1165310 1165310

2747 585 3046 557 - -

4051511 15513 449 748 661 16 826 023
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

(An Egvptian Joint Stock Company)

Notes to the consolidated financtal statements (Cent.}

For the financial period ended September 30. 2016 Transiation from Arabic

45-  Other Income
The nine~-month ended 30/9/2016 ' The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/7/2016 From 1/122016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015

USD USD USD USD _
Provisions - no longer required 9679438 9 880 662 {728) 4178 445
Reversal of impairment loss on debtors* - 33 086 991 (895) 96 443
Capital gain (loss) 1319 67 930 © 5681 21 885
Other 163 151 384 023 (376 357) 514 664
9 843 908 43 419 606 (372 299) 4811 438

% This amount is represented in the reversal of tmpairment losses on the balances due from an

46-

47-

unconsolidated subsidiary which works in the energy field due to loss of control over it during the
period. The reversal of this impairment loss was made due to the expectation of such amounts
because of the rise up in the crude oil prices during the period compared to, end of last year and
approaching to sign an agreement to amend the prices of gas supply with the Egyptian General

Petroleum Corporation and entering into negotiations to sell some of the investments of the Group
within oil and gas sector.

Selling & distribution expenses

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016 The nine-month ended 30/9/2015
From 1/7/2016 . From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
il 30/9/2016 il 30/9/2016 till 30972015 till 30/9/2015
_ USD USD USD USD
Cooling technology by natural gas :
activity's selling & distribution 80 780 154 051 43 357 43 357
expenses
Chemicals & plastic activity's 947 329 3159011 1051957 3375217
selling & distribution expenses
Phosphate fertilizers activity's 1155 840 4266923 306 498 2 069 907
selling & distribution expenses
2183949 7578 985 1401 812 5488 481
Other expenses
The nine-month ended 30/9/2016 The nine-month ended 30/9/2015
From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2616 From 1/7/2015 From 1/12015
il 33/9/2016 fill 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
USD USD USD USD
Provisions formed 10625229 32 506 777 12 897 39422
Impafrment loss on debtors* - - 45091 143 050
10025229 32 306777 57 988 182472
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Egypt Kuwait Helding Co.
{An Egvptan Joint Stock Companv)

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Cont.)

For the financial period ended September 30, 2016

Net financing income

Financing income

Interest income
Foreign exchange profit

Financing costs
Financing expenses

Income tax expense

Current income tax expense
Deferred income tax benefit

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016

Translatton firom Arabic

The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
fill 30/9/2016 il 30/2/2016 till 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
USD UsD USD USD

3903034 10 581773 3777999 11 554 073
(449 012) 1 698 405 (244 331) 693 701
3454 022 12 280 178 3533 168 12 247 774
(2737 611) (8 108 444) (3 369 692) {10 458 780)
(2737 611) (8 108 444) (3369 692) (10 458 730)
716 411 4171 734 163476 1 788 994

The pine-month ended 30/9/2016

The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
USD USD USh USD
8 505 967 18 717 802 521794 10 087 816
{365 115) (753 761) (4679 765) (5281971)
8 140 852 17 964 041 (4157 971) 4 805 845
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Egypt Kuwait Holding Co. -
An Egvptian Joint Stock Company’
Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Cont.)

For the financia! period ended September 30, 2016 Translation from Arabic
50-  Discontinued operations

The item of losses from discontinued opérations amounted to USD 10 630 332 as follows:-

The nine-month ended 36/9/2016 The nine-month ended 30/9/2015
From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
tll 30/9/2016 fill 30/9/2016 - till 30/92015 till 30/9/2015
UsDh USD UsSD Uusph

Discontinzed operation gain (loss) - Drilling ”
& Petroleum Service sector (A) - (10 545 673) (711 689) 1532633
(Loss) from discontimued operation in a
subsidiary working in Chemicals sector B B 673 866 2 800
Discontinued operation gain (loss)—a
Company from other aperations sectors (B) 58428 (84 659) (190 741) (108 313)
Gain {losses) from discontinued operations _ 58 428 (10 630 332) (228 564) 1427120
The Parent Company’s share in gain (losses)
from discontinued operations 58 428 (10630332) (201 926) 236 047
Basic earnings {losses) per share from '
discontinued operations (US cent / Share) 0.01 (1.09) {0.02) 0.02
Diluted earnings (losses) per share from
discontinued operations (US cent / Share) 0.01 (1.04}) (0.02) 0.02

(A} On February 25, 2016, an agreement was signed whereby the transfer of the shares owned by the
Group in a subsidiary working in the energy field was transferred to an investor outside the Group.
The Group has assigned all management and voting rights related to the shares owned by the Group
in this subsidiary. Accordingly this subsidiary has been accounted for as unconsclidated subsidiary in
the consolidated financial statements as at September 30, 2016.

The Company’s assets, liabilities, non-controlling interest, and its related items of comprehensive
income have been excluded. The resulting losses from loss of control of USD 10 948 951 have been
recoghized in the income statement during the period and any remaining investments in the

unconsolidated subsidiary have been recognized at fair value on that date.

The Company’s assets and labilities were not a discontinved operation and were not classified as
non-current assets held for sale as at December 31, 2015. The comparative figures of the consolidated
income statement were re-presented to show the discontinued operation separately from the continued
operations.

-54.-



Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.

(An Egyptian Joint Stock Com pany)

Nates to the consolidated financial statements {Cont.)

- from discontinned operation (net of tax)

(B)

For the financial perind ended September 30, 2015 Tvansiation Fom Arabic
Gain (Losses) from discontinued operation is represented as follows:
' The nine-month ended 30/9/2016 The nine-month ended 30/9/2015
From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 30/9/2016 Gl 30/9/2016 Hll 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
: USD USD UsD UsD
Results of discontinued operation '
Revenues - - 18 680 515 63 029 403
Share of gain of associates - 403 278 . -
Expenses - - (19392 204) (61 496 770)
Gains (Losses) from operating activities - - (711 689) 1532633
Income tax expense - - -
Gains (Losses) from operating activities, net -
of income tax 403278 (711 689) 1532633
The Parent Company’s share in gains from - ,,
operating activities 403 278 (684 151) 341 560
The non -controlling interest in gains from - -
operating activities (27538) 1191073
Loss on disposal of discontinued operation - (10948 951) - -
: Gain (Loss) from discontinued operation (net - (10 545 673) (711 689) 1 532 633
-, oftax) ' .
* The Parent Company’s share in gain (loss) . (10 545 673) (684 151} 341 560

During the financial period ended September 30, 2016, an approval on selling offer have been taken, -

with respect to selling the entire number of shares owned by the Group in a subsidiary company of

which it owns 26% of the shares of a company (associate company) as mentioned in details in note No.
(25) above.

The Company’s assets and liabilities were not a discontinued operation and were not classified as non-
current assets held for sale as at December 31, 2015. The comparative figures of the consolidated
income statement were re-presented to show the discontinued operation separately from the continued

operation.

Gain (Losses) from discontinued operation is represented as follows:

from discontinued operation (net of tax)

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016 The nine-month ended 30/9/2015
From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2016 it 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
USD UsD UsDh USD
Results of discontinued operation
Reverues ! 61 032 248 067 88 698 256 187
Share of loss of associates - (296 494) (277 89¢6) (359 625)
Expenses {2 604) (36 232) (1543) (4 875)
Gain (Losses) from aperating activities 58 428 (84 659) (190 741) (108 313)
Income tax expense - - - -
Gain (Losses) from operating activities, net of 58 428 (84 659) (190 741) (108 313)
Income tax
The Parent Company’s share in loss from 58428 84 659 "
- operating activitli]es ’ ( ) (190741) (108 313)

o The non-controlling interest share in loss from - . ) ]
operating activities
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued - - i .
operations
Gain (Loss} from discontinued operation (net 58 428 (84 659} (190 741) (108 313)
of tax)
The Parent Company’s share in gain (loss) 58 428 (84 659) (190 741) (108 313)
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For the financial period ended September 30, 2016

Earnings per share

51-1 Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic eamings per share
based on the profit atiributable to ordinary

shares outstanding during the period as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders

Net profit for the period attributable
to equity holders of the Parent
Company

Employees’ share in profit

Board of directors’ emoluments of the
Parent

Employees & board of directors’
share in profit in subsidiaries and
associates

Shareholders’ share in net profit of
the period (Basic)

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period (Basic)
Basic earnings per share (US cent /
Share)

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016

Transtation from Arabic

for the financial period ended September 30, 2016 was
shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary

The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/7/2016 From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2016 i1l 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
USD USD USD USD

12062 785 47065 025 5538 894 33 060 742

(14 481) (43 443) (15 840) (46 260)

(2 896 294) (5134 273) (1 499 850) (4 499 550)

9152 010 41 891 309 4023 204 28514 932

975 658 258 975 658 258 966 513 730 966 513 730
0.94 429 042 295

Earnings per share from continued operations

Net profit for the period attributable

to equity holders of the Parent
Company

Employees’ share in profit

Board of directors’ emoluments of the
Parent Company

Employees & board of directors’
shar¢ in profit in subsidiaries and
associates

Shareholders’ share in net profit of
the period (Basic)

Weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period (Basic)

Basic earnings per share (US cent/
share)

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016

From 1/7/2016

The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

¥rom 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
till 30/9/2016 411 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
USD USb USD USDh
12004 357 57 699 357 5739920 32824 695
{14 481) {43 443) (15 840) (46 260)
(2 896 294) (5134 273) {1 499 850) {4499 550)
9093 582 52 521 641 4224230 28278 885
975658 258 975 658 258 9656513 730 966513 730
0.93 5.38 0.44 293
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For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 Transiation from Argbic
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period (Basic) :-

The nine-month The nine-month

ended 30/9/2016 ended 30/9/2015
USD USD

Issued shares at beginning of the period 975 658 258 975 658 258
Effect of issuance of bonus shares (incentive shares) 48 782912 -

1024 441 170 975 658 258
Effect of issuance of incentive shares (43 782 912) -
Effect of own shares held (treasury shares) - (9144 528)
Weighted average munber of shares outstanding during the period 975 658 258 966 513 730

{Basic)

51-2 Diluted earnings per share

The caleulation of diluted earnings per share for the financial period ended September 30, 2016 has heen
based on the profit attributable to ordmmary shareholders and a weighted average number of ordinary

o shares outstanding during the financial period after adjustments for the effects of the dilutive potential
‘ ordinary shares as follows:

Profit attributable to equity holders

. The nine-month ended 30/9/2016
From 1/7/2016

The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/1/2016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
tll 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
J USD USD USD USDh
et profit for the period attributable to equity 9152 010 41891309 4023 204 28 514 932
i holders of the Parent Company (Basic)
' Adjustments for incentive and bonus plan - - - -
i Net profit for the period attributable to equity 9152010 41 891 309 4023 204 28 514 932
holders of the Parent Company (Diluted)
- Weighted average number of shares 1024441170 1024 441 170 966 513 730 966 513730
outstanding during the period (Diluted)
Diluted earnings per share (US cent/ Share) 0.89 4.09 0.42 295

Diluted earnings per share from continued operafions

The nine-month ended 30/9/2016 The nine-month ended 30/9/2015

From 1/7/2016

From 1/172016 From 1/7/2015 From 1/1/2015
tll 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2016 till 30/9/2015 till 30/9/2015
) USsD USDh USDh USD

Net profit for the period attributable to equity 9093582 52521 641 4224 230 28 278 885
holders of the Parent Company ( Basic)
Adjustments for incentive and bomus plan - - - -
Net profit for the period attributable to equity 9093 582 52 521 641 4224 230 28 278 885
holders of the Parent Company (Diluted) :
Weighted average  number of shares outstanding ,
durh%g the periog (Diluted) 1024 441 170 1024 441 170 966 513 730 966 513 730
Diluted eamnings per share (US cent/ Share) 0.89 5.13 0.44 2.93
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_Fur the financial period ended September 3, 2016
On June 9, 2016 all the shares belon
the plan, The weighted avera

as follows:-

Transiation from Arabic

The nine-month

g to the incentives and bonus plan were granted to the beneficiaries of
ge number of shares outstanding (diluted) during the period were calculated

The nine-month

ended 36/9/2016 . ended 30/9/2015

USD USD
Issued shares at beginning of the period 975 658 258 975 658 258
Effect of issuance of bonus shares (incentive shares) 48 782 912 -
1024441 170 975 658 258
Effect of own shares held (treasury shares) - (9 144 528)
Weighted average number of shares outstanding during the 1 024 441 170 966 513 730

period {diluted)

Incentive and bonus plan of the Parent Company’s employees and directors

On September 11, 2014, the exira - ordinary general assembly unanimously agreed to approve the
incentive & bonus plan of the Company’s employees and managers and executive board of directors
members, through the allocation of 48 7872 912 shares, at a percentage of 5% of its total shares issued
till December 31, 2014 to apply the incentive and bonus plan through one of the following:-

Issuance of new shares through capital increase or by transferring from reserve or part thereof or
retained eamings to shares by which the value of issued capital is increased.

Transfer of treasury shares to incentive and bonus plan and to be financed from reserves.

On November 12, 2014, the Egyptian Financial Supervisory Authority approved applying the
incentive & bonus plan of the Company’s employees and board of directors members, which inchides
granting the Company’s shares to the board members, managing directors, sectors ‘heads | general
managers and the other employees in the Company or its subsidiaries {equity settled share- based
payments) according to the level of the Company’s or individuals’ economic performance pursuant to
the shareholders , and the terms and conditions stated in the said plan.

On June 11, 2015, the ordinary general assembly of the Company approved by the maj ority of votes to
transfer part of the retained earnings as shown in the consolidated financial statements for the
financial year ended at December 31, 2014, that were approved by the shareholder's’ ordinary general
assembly held on March 22, 2015 to 48 782 912 bonus shares with an amount of USD 12 195 728
for the purpose of financing the incentive & bonus plan of the Company's employees and managers
and executive board of directors members, that has been approved by the Egyptian Financial
Supervisory Authority on November 12, 2014. Annotation to the effect of such increase was made on
the Company’s commercial register on September 13, 2015,

On September 16, 2015 the Listing committee of the Egyptian stock exchange approved listing the
incentive shares to finance the incentive and bonus plan for employees and board members, On
October 5, 2013, the incentive shares was added to the shareholders register labeled as “the incentive
and bonus plan for employees of Egypt Kuwait Holding Co.”

On June 9, 2016, the Supervisory Committee on the incentives and bonus plan agreed to grant and
allocate all the shares belong to the incentives and bonus plan to the beneficiaries of the plan as well as
determining the number of shares allocated to each one of them, The vesting date of such shares was
also determined to be December 31, 2016. All the shares were granted to the executive members of the
Board of Directors and the senior managers of the Company, a matter that resulted in reco gnizing an
cxpense for equity-settled share-based payment arrangements in the consolidated statement of income
with a total amount of USD 9 680 433 and a corresponding increase with the same amount included in
the equity caption under the item amount set aside for share-based payments transactions. The
beneficiary may dispose of the shares only after the lapse of three years from the date of share transfer
to him. During this period, the beneficiary shall be entitled to receive 100 % of total dividends and
exercise the right of voting on ‘the resolutions of the Company.
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Fair value
of share
Number of at
The Allottee Grant date shares grant date
The executive members ~ June 9, 2016 48782 912 36
of the Board of
Directors and the senior
managers
Controlled entities
Material subsidiaries are represented in the following:
Subsidiary name
Country
Subsidiary name of
Incorporation
National Gas Company (NATGAS)S.AE *) Egypt
Al Nubaria for Natsral Gas Company S.A.E Egypt
Globe Telecom Company S.AE Egypt
Globe Fiber for Information & Communication Company S.A.E Ezypt
Globe for Trading & Agencies Company S.A.E Egympt
International Financial Investments Company S.A.E under Private Egypt
Free Zones System
Ekuity Holing International - Limited by Shares Cayman [slands
Al Watania for Electric Technology Company (Kahraba) S. A F Egypt
Globe for Communication & Information Technology Company Egypt
SAE
Midor for Logestic Services Company S.A.E : Egypt
Cooling Technalogy by Natural Gas Company {Gas Chill) S.A.E Egypt
Sprea Mist for Production of Chemicals & Plastics Company §.A.E Egypt
Flastichem Company S.A.E Egypt
Midor Suez for Oil Refining Company S.A.E Egypt
Egyptian Company for Petrochemicals $.AE Egypt
Fayoum Gas Company S.AE Egypt
Fayoum Gas Holding Company - Limited Liability Co. British Virgin
Islands
Solidarity Group United Arab of
Emirates
Arabian Fertilizers - Limited Liability Co. at the Jebel Ali Free Zone UAE
Arabian Company for Fertilizers. $.AE Egypt
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Transtation from Arabic

Details of beneficiaries of the plan and the granting conditions of the shares to them are as follows:

Exercise
Price Conditions
- - The Company
achieves increase in
net profit by 15%
annuajly
- Increase in the
company’s share price
in the Egyptian Stock
Exchange by 15%
annually
Ownership
30/9/2016 3112/2015
Ya %
83.97 74.94
83.97 74.93
09.93 99,93
99.9 5%.9
100 100
09.99 99.99
100 100
8747 8747
9% 99
99.89 99.89
85.99 85.73
- 100 100
90997 99.997
99.99 99.9%
99.27 99.27
77.99 77.9%
100 100
100 100
59.99 99.59
74.72 7472
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For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 Transiation from Arabic

Counftry Ovnership
Subsidiarv name of
Incorporation 3092016 3141272015
. % Ya
Naticnal Energy Co - S.A.E Egypt 99.99 99.99
Middle East for River Transport Co.- S.A.E under Private Free Zones Egypt 99.9 99.9
System
Alexfert Investments- Limited Liability Co, (#%x) Cayman Islands - 99.99
International Fertilizers Trading- Limited Liability Co. Cayman Islands 99.99 9999
Bawabat Al Kuwait Holding Company - S.AX (**) Kuwait 41.67 41.67
Alex Fert Co, (Abou Quir) - under the Public Free Zanes System Egypt 3781 3781
International Petrochemicals Investments Company - under the Public Eeypt 46.14 46.14
Free Zones System (*%¥)
International Logistics Company ~ L.L.C. Gl Kuwait 41,67 41.67
Magnoliz Holding LP Co. (***) Cayman Islands 46.14 46.14
IPIC Global Co. (*+%) _ Cayman Islands 46.14 46,14
Magnolia Energy Infrastructure LP Co, (kY UsA 46.14 46.14
Magnolia Idahe Nitrogen Co, (¥%%) USA 46.14 46.14
EKHO for Agriculture Development Co. Egypt 100
Henosis for Construction & Real-Estate Development Co. Egypt 99.99 -
Capital Investment Limited Luxembourg Luxmnbourg 99.99 -

The consolidated financial statements as at September 30, 2016 did not include some subsidiaries of the

Group which are working in the energy field because of loss of control over them as mentioned in detail in
note No. {50) above

During the period, an additional stake of 9 % of the share capital of National Gas Company (NATGAS)
S.A.E was acquired for USD 3 043 968 and the acquisition resulfed in a gain of USD 1 223 550 that has
been recognized within equity as it considered transaction among the Company’s shareholders.

Starting from April 1st, 2012, the investments in Bawabat Al Kuwait Holding Company and its subsidiaries
(International Logistics Company, Alex Fert Co. “Abou Quir”, International Petrochemicals Investments
Company, Magnolia Holding LP Co., IPIC Global Co. Magnolia Energy Infrastructure LP Co. and
Magnolia Idaho Nitrogen Co.) have been accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group instead of
accounting for them as associates despite the fact that the Group has no more than 50% of their voting
powers and this was because the Group has de- facto control over the financial and operating policies of
Bawabat Al Kuwait Holding Company by the Group as the Group is the main shareholder in it and has
half of the board of directors members of Bawabat Al Kuwait and one of ifs members works as the vice
president and the managing director of Bawabat Al Kuwait, who stated to exercise his executive duties as
from April 1st, 2012 and this matter has put the management contract of Bawabat Al Kuwait concluded
with one of the Group's companies which is wholly owned by the Parent Company into effect. In
addition, the smallness of contributions percentages in equity and the distribution of the non-conirolling
interests in the share capital significantly

During year 2012, the Group through, [PIC Global Co. - a subsidiary and its subsidiaries acquired 99 % in
the share capital of Magnolia Idaho Nitrogen (formerly Southeast Idaho Energy) in the United States of
America of an amount of USD 3 million, which owns water rights of an amount of USD 3 million at the

acquisition date, for the purpose of constructing a plant for producing fertilizers using Nitrogen extracted
from an area near American Falls, Idaho.
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Eor the financial period ended September 30, 20156 Transiation from Arabic

(****)

On November 6, 2014, the Board of Directors of the subsidiary Company has decided that the
fertilizers project is economically infeasible and has decided not to expend any further amounts other
than the amounts already paid of USD 38 980 650. This decision was taken as a result of the decrease
of the IRR due to the significant change in the investment cost of the project. Accordingly, the
impairment testing for this investment was made on that date and it was concluded that the value of
investment is impaired in full as follows :-

Note No. USD
Impairment losses related to Nitrogen fertilizers project
Impairment loss on projects under construction (13) 14471 667
Impairment loss on intangible assets (15) 3000000
Total impairment losses related to Nitrogen fertilizers project 17 471 667

The said investments were accounted for as an asset acquisition and not as a business combination
due to the fact that the acquisition does not represent an activity in addition to the fact that the acquire
has limited assets and did not carry out any operating or production activities. The said assets were
recorded at the paid amount and the remaining amounts were not recorded until fulfilling the
remaining terms of payment according to the contract and until determining the fair values of the net
assets acquired in order to allocate the acquisition cost over the assets based on the relative fair value.
In addition, the assets, liabilities and operating results of the said company for the financial year
ended in December 31, 2015 and for the financial period ended September 30, 2016 were included in
the consolidated financial statements at end of the year based on the management’s reporis prepared
by the financial department of the said company as the audit and the review thereof have not been
finalized vet.

During the financial period ended September 30, 2016, the management of the Group has agreed to
the offer to sell the shares owned by it in this company, As a result, Alexfert Investments Co’s assets
and liabilities were re-classified as non-current assets held for sale as mentioned in detail in note No.
(25), (50). '

Transactions with related parties

Related parties are represented in the Parent Company & subsidiarics’ shareholders, and companies
in which they own directly shares giving them significant influence or controls over the Group and
also board of directors of group’s companies. The Group’s companies made severa] fransactions with
related parties and these transactions have been done in accordance with the terms determined by the
Board of Directors of these companies. The conditions of those transactions were equivalent to those
prevailing in the free market, Significant fransactions are represented in following:-

The Parent Company rents part of its present premises from Delta Insurance Co. - An associate in
which the Parent Company holds 32,02 % of its issued capital by virtue of lease contracts ending on
June 30, 2020 and January 31, 2017. In addition, the Company has made Group insurance agreements
with Delta Insurance Co.

The Group has agreed with Abu Qir Fertilizers and Chemical Industries Company on signing rental
contracts for a plot of land to construct the factory on it, a contract for a building to use it as a
temporary headquarter for the Company’s management and a confract for a plot of land to construct
the water station. The Company has also agreed on signing a contract for using its sea and land
facilities for exporting amounts of the produced ammonia.
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Transiation from Arabic

55-  Financial instruments
85-1 Credit risk
Exposure to credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the consolidated financial statements was as follows:
Note 3092016 311212015
No, USD USD

Other debtors - due from Sudapet Co. and Nilepet Co.Ltd. (22) - 22149 309
Other debtors - due from Carbon Holdings Limited Co. (22} - - 10519685
Property, plant and equipment selling receivables (16) 158 390 225224
Held to maturity financial assets )] 57 936 664 -
Due from Egyptian General Petroleum Corporation {10) 14 813 755 14 143 503
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss — (20 9808 343 i
Governmental bonds
Trade receivables 21 25323580 66 446 606
Cash & cash equivalents (18) 342 276 523 396 629 48]

430317 235 510113 808
The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables at the consolidated financial statements
date according to the type of customer was as follows:

30/9/2016 31/12/2015

UsSDh USD
Governmental customer 15393 225 14 569 252
Retail customers 471 539 153 350
End user customers 17 848 485 62 019 431
Export customers 6 424 086 3 848 076
40 137 335 80 550 109
55-2 Impairment losses

The aging of trade receivables at the consolidated financial statements date was as follows:

30/9/2016 31/12/2015
Impairment Impairment
Balance logses Balance losses
Ush USD USD usD
Not past due : 1 889 029 - 3420944 -
Past due 0-30 days 6 112731 - 3114 843 -
Past due 1-3 month 24436713 - 13 128 211 -
Past due 3-12 month 5554008 - 19978 825 -
More than one year 2104714 216356 40 947 286 248 968
40137335 2163356 80 590 109 248 968

Impairment loss amounting to USD 216 356 as at September 30, 2016 was basically attributable to
chemicals & plastic and telecommunications and gas customers,
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Transiation firom Arabic

55-3  Liguidity risk
i The fellowing are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities:
’ September 30, 2016
: Carrying 6 month or 6-12 More than
amount less month 1-2 years 2-5 vears 5 years
USD USDh USD UsD USD USD
Secured bank loans & facilities 140331 116 58 703 737 76 758 283 992 205 2 460 990 1415901
Unsecured bank facilities 89 990 792 89 190 792 3 800 000 7 600 000 9400 000 -
Suppliers & subcontractors 15752 167 9321670 6430 498 - - -
Egyptian General Pefroleum 84953797 84953 798 : . : :
Corporation
Bank overdraft 4 826 976 4826975 - - - -
335 854 848 226996972 86 583 781 8592205 11 860590 1415901
December 31, 2015
Carrying 6 moath or 6-12 More than
amount less month 1-2 years 2-5 years 3 years
’ USD USD UsD USD USD UsD
Secured bank loans & facilities 218 738 473 65 463 666 96 008 828 51955943 5310036 -
| Unsecured bank facilities 121 117 248 94717248 5600 000 7 600 000 13 200 060 .
. Suppliers & subcontractors 83576453 77 877 808 5 698 645 - - .
; Egyptian General Petrolenm 67 554 770 46 843 907 20 710 863 - - -
Corporation
Bank overdraft 42 735 150 25 728 341 17 006 809 . - -
533 722 094 310 830 970 145 025 145 59 555 943 18510 036 -
55-4  Curreney risk
]
] Exposure to currency risk
' The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows based on notional amounts:
September 30, 2016
Us LE K.W.D EURQ GBP
Description
Cash at banks & on hand 262740328 685018 656 - 3313398 11916
Held to maturity financial assets - 600 898 212 - - -
Investment in treasury bills - 260975 579 - - -
Debtors 49485418 465 407 984 - 139 -
Due from Egyptian General - 131 398 003 - - -
Petroleum Corporation
Trade & notes receivables 2 177 280 265 858 937 - 11522 -
Bank overdraft (4 763 552) - - (71 666) -
: Secured bank loans (139975 282) (3 156 249) - - -
: Unsecured bank facilities (70 958 607) (168 815 479) . - -
Due to Egyptian General (1133 505) (743 485 999) - - -
. Petroleum Corporation
Trade payables (13 294 679} (21 525 476} - (33420) (1639)
! Creditors (28360321 {636 085 203) {126 5200 {85 800) -
Other long-term labilities - - - - -
Net exposure 55517 080 836 488 965 (126 520) 3134173 10277
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For the financial period ended September 30, 2016 Translation from Arabic
December 31, 2015
sD LE K.W.D EURO GRP
Description
Cash at banks & on hand 275982 264 905 279 631 - 1 061782 51814
Investments in treasury bills - - - - -
Debtors 89 494 905 385 544 321 - - 600
Due from Egyptian General
Petroleum Corporation 18063 110602 195 ) ) )
Trade & notes receivables 42 954 904 208 179 355 : 249 267 -
Bank overdraft (42 620 426) - - (102 414) -
Secured bank loans (278 245 731) (70 637 166) - - -
Unsecured bank facilities (41742 585) (84924 621) . _ .
Due to Egyptian General
Petroleum Comporation (61 299) (375339 392) i ) )
Trade payables (80 432 308) (22 613 639) - { 35380 (142 740)
Creditors {140 383 799) {508 052 761) {106 568) (54 928) -
Other long-term liabilities (1 065) (6 521 726) - - -
Net exposure (171 037 075) 541 516 197 106 568) 1118 327 (90 326)

54-5

The following exchange rates applied during the period:

Average exchange rate doring the period ended Spet rate
30/9/2016 30/9/2015 30/9/2016 31/12/2015
L.E 8.59 . 7.61 8.87 7.82
KD 0.302905 0.3023 0.30195 0.3040
EURO 0.90035 0.8927 0.8850 09157
GBP 0.68345 0,6595 0.6944 0.6765
sDG - 6319 - 6319

Interest rate risk

At the consolidated financial statements the interest rate profile of the Group’s interest bearing-
financial instruments was:

Carrying amount
30/92016 311272015
USDh USD
Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities 7667163 6 526 901
7667163 6 526 901

Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities 222 654 745 333328 820
222 654 745 333328 820

The Group does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
consolidated profit or loss, and the Group does not designate derivatives (interest rate swaps) as
hedging instruments under a fair value hedge accounting model. Therefore, a change in interest rates
at the consolidated financial statements date would not impact the consolidated profit or loss.
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55-6  Fair values

Fair values versus carrying amounts

Transtation from Arabic

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying amounts shown in the

consolidated statement of financial position are as follow:

30/9/2016 31122015
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair value Amount Fair value
USD USD UsD USD

Available for sale investments 113 804 871 113 804 871 115930389 115930 389
Held to maturity financial assets 57936 664 57936 664 - -
gge]p E?;E ‘ig}’pﬂan General Petroleum 14 813 755 14 813 755 14 143 503 14 143 503
Debtors 108 449 425 108 449 425 138 735 192 138 735 192
Cash and cash equivalents 342 909 670 342 909 670 396 867 046 396 867 046
Investments in treasury bills 29 4272 275 29422275 6 044 646 6 044 646
iilzaéntc;?lka)::ets at fair value through 25 024 185 25 024 185 112 495 674 112 495 674
Trade receivables 32 160300 32 160 300 69 569 490 69 569 490
Secured bank loans (140331 118) (140 331 116) (218 738 473) (218 738 473)
Unsecured bank facilities (89 960 7921 (89 990 792) (121 117 248) (121 117 248)
Suppliers & subcontractors (15752 167) {15752 167) (83 576 453) (83 576 453)
gléfptsrfgggtlan General Petrolenm {84 953 797) (84 553 797) (67 554 770) (67 554 770)
Creditors (136 063 788) {130 063 788) (184 866 002) (184 866 002}
Bank overdraft (4 826 976) {4 826 976) {42 735 150) (42 735 150)
Other long-term liabilities (683 654) (683 654) { 833 980} (833 980)

257 918 855 257 918 835 134 363 864 134 363 864

The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in note No. {2) above

56- Capital commitments

Total capital commitments amounted to USD 443 967 as at September 30, 2016 represented in the
amount of contributions in long — term investments which have not been requested to be paid till the

consolidated balance sheet date (2015: USD § 353 244),

57- Contingent liabilities

In addition to amounts provided for in the consolidated balance sheet, there are contingent Habilities
as at September 30, 2016 totaled USD 13.286 million (2015: USD 37.547 million) represented in the

following:
- Uncovered letters of credit amounting to USD 3 355 348 (2015: USD 19 379 247).

- Letters of guarantee issued by banks on the account of the Group and in favor of others amounting te

USD 9 931 031 (2015: USD 18 167 812).

58- Tax status
Corporate profit tax

- The Company enjoyed a tax exemption for 5 years according to Investment Law No. 8 of 1997 and

ended on December 31, 2003,

- Tax inspection for corporate profit tax from inception till 2004 was carried out and the resulting tax

differences were settled.,
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Years from 2005 till 2008 The Company’s records were not requested for inspection within the
determined sample by the Tax Authority till authorizing of these financial statements for issuance.

2009 is currently inspected.

Years from 2010 till 2015 The Company’s records were not requested for inspection within the
determined sample by the Tax Authority till authorizing of these financial statements for issuance.

The annual tax retumns are submitted on due date according to the provisions of Law No. 91 of 2005.

Salary tax
The tax inspection for salary tax for the period from inception till 2006 was carried out and the final
assessment was determined and resulting differences were settled.

The tax inspection for years from 2007 till 2013 was carried out and the final assessment was made
and the Company settled the resulting differences.

The tax inspection for years 2014 and 2015 is currently in process.
Monthly withheld taxes are settled on due dates.

Stamp tax

Inspection for the stamp tax for the period from the beginning of activity till 31/7/2006 was carried
out and the final assessment was made and the Company settled the resulting differences.
The due tax are setiled on due dates.

Property tax

The survey of the Group’s properties has not been carried out by the tax Enumeration and Assessment
Committee vet.

Subsequent event

The Central Bank of Egypt had decided in its meeting dated November 3, 2016 to float exchange
rates of foreign currencies, to give the Egyptian banks more flexibility in the process of the setup of
pricing the foreign currencies ou selling & buying through the identified legitimate channels of
dealing. The Central Bank had set certain exchange rates of the main foreign currencies as a
reference to start dealing with at the beginning of November 3, 2016 as follows:

Main Foreion Currencies Selling Buying
Ush 14.2757 135277
Euro 15.8389 150076
KD 44,5844 47.1068

GRP 16.8393 17.7718

Accordingly, the balances of the monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies may
significantly vary subsequently than its recorded values in the interim consolidated financial statements

for the period ended September 30, 2016, in addition, the Company’s performance may be affected
significantly in the subsequent periods as a result of the same resolution.

In line with the Central Bank’s resolution referred to, the Central Bank of Egypt ratsed both overnight
deposit & lending rates by 300 bps to reach up 14.75% and 15.75% respectively; which may affect the
company’s net finance costs.
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